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The Estate Agents Authority (‘EAA”) is a statutory body, established in November
1997 under the Estate Agents Ordinance (“EAQ”). Its principal functions are to
regulate the practice of the estate agency trade in Hong Kong, promote integrity
and competence within the industry, and facilitate training for practitioners to
ensure a proper standard of conduct.

The EAA organises qualifying examinations, issues licences to individuals
and companies, handles complaints against licensees, conducts compliance
inspections and metes out disciplinary sanctions to practitioners who have
breached the EAO. The EAA also organises activities for the professional
development of the trade and promotion of consumer education.

The EAA is a self-financing body. Its Members (the EAA Board) are appointed by
the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and consist
of a Chairman, a Vice-chairman, and 18 ordinary members from various sectors
in the community, including the estate agency sector.
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The EAA strives to

e be aresponsible, impartial, responsive and effective regulator

e ensure practitioners abide by the law and promote a high standard of integrity and

probity in the trade
e promote a high degree of professionalism and competence in the trade
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To regulate the practice of the estate agency trade in Hong Kong, raise the competence of
practitioners, and set high standards of ethics and conduct befitting the trade.
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Number of Licences and Statements of Number of Examination Candidates
Particulars of Business (as at 31/3/2014) (2013/14)

20,000 6,000
5000 4470 4802
15,000 4
4,000
10,000 3.000
5,000 2,000
H
. 1,000
0
BEEWR  ERE  MERE  BERE 0 \ -
Salesperson’s  (fAA) KR (A7) MR HEgE ERR EXR
licence  Estate agent's Estate agent's Statement of BRER BREHR
licence licence particulars Estate Agents Salespersons
(individual) (company) of business Qualifying Qualifying

Examination Examination

SFEHEHEHEHEHE5HE5EHE5EHE5E5E5E5E5EHEHEEEE]

BEREISR (2013/14 5 %) MEIR B (2013/14F ) _

Number of Complaint Cases (2013/14) Number of Compliance Inspections (2013/14)
W EEH{ER Received W —FE8IB25 At first-sale sites
W 25K @R Completed* W AR IR At estate agency shops

B 48L& Online advertisements

598 —_
’ —1,425
573 —
1,526 — #AEY Total
3,549
* o RAFEENER  EReEREFERWEN TLRE o BIERBBRATER - BREEE LA -
BeRENER  UWEBTHHRENREZETIKZAER - * Includes the development sites, sales offices and vicinity areas.

* Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from
previous years. The figures include prima facie cases referred
to and dealt with by the Disciplinary Committee and non-prima
facie cases disposed of by the Operations Division.
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Number of Enrolments in Continuing
Professional Development Activities (2013/14)

Number of Licences
Suspended/Revoked (2013/14)

RS M $4 Suspended 26
35 Revoked 28*

33,331
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* 27 cases were decided by the Licensing Committee on the
ground that the licensees concerned were considered not “fit
and proper” persons to continue to hold a licence, and one was
decided by the Disciplinary Committee.
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Chairman’s ’Message
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The EAA has pioneered in many
areas during these six years. We have
ventured where we have not been, and
have grown and thrived. May the EAA
continue to do so in years to come.”
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Chairman’s ’Message

A road less travelled, six years hence

| have the good fortune of the company of a wonderful book during a recent summer break in New Zealand. The
Art of Travel by Alain de Botton sums up journeys and the management of travel in pristine verses with colourful
anecdotes.

It helps me reflect on the six years journey | have had with the EAA, from taking over to leading it to sometimes
unknown pastures, culminating in scoring the many successes, and of course, overcoming the all too frequent
crisis and mishaps of the estate agency industry in Hong Kong.

The Art of Travel is very aptly divided into the below sections:

DEPARTURE alias ARRIVAL
MOTIVES

LANDSCAPE

ART

RETURN

[t is not unlike my six years journey, save and except the departure should really be arrival for the purpose of this
message.

ARRIVAL

The first chapter in the book on anticipation of the journey mirrors the call six years ago from Ms Eva Cheng, then
Secretary for Transport and Housing, inviting me to take up the chair. Without having served in any capacity at the
EAA, | got hold of the Estate Agents Ordinance and read the Ordinance from beginning to end. | was burdened
with anxiety but a trifle excited. Public service was no stranger at that point. | served as Chairman of the Advisory
Committee on Travel Agents (ACTA) for six years right before then, and chaired the Finance and HR committee
of the Tourism Board where | had a momentous six years on the Board. | still reminisce it was the happiest times
of my public service array to date back then. The EAA seems then to encapsulate ACTA and the Tourism Board
functions, but even better, it does have a licensing function, i.e. real teeth.

After quite a number of to and fro with Eva, | said yes to steering the EAA. | quickly got myself ensconced
into the paper side of how it is run and was impressed with all the hardware which was in place. | came into
the chairmanship where all the stakeholders knew their place, so to speak. | thought of how we can better it,
either improving on the trade as an industry for both trade members and the consumer at large, or inspiring the
government to do more and brave more for the same cause.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 53R 8
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Chairman’s ’Message

MOTIVES

This is how the “IT PAYS TO PLAY FAIR AND PROPER” maxim was born. | reckon by the time | took over the
chairmanship, the EAA has been going for 11 years. The regulatory function is churning well and the public is by
and large reaping benefit from the 11 years of good work. What we can do is to instil in trade members:

MOTIVES TO BE GOOD.

This of course is like planting trees and sowing seeds. It takes time, patience and relentless efforts. Now, six years
hence, | am pleased to perceive noticeable improvement.

Besides priding themselves as to how many deals they have done in a given time, trade members and their leaders
are quite comfortably conversant as to how good they are at getting our EAA guidelines incorporated into their
management fabric.

LANDSCAPE

If ever one has to operate in a changing landscape, try the Hong Kong real estate market! It is one of the most
volatile and, dare | say, important members of her economic pillars. It traverses social and geographical divides.
Should the estate agency trade be regulated well, it helps to ensure Hong Kong real estate is valued and
appreciated at its true worth, even given market forces.

When | came into the chairmanship, the real estate market was open to all. There may be some qualification to
this with the advent of tax measures enacted in the past three years, but it is by and large still a freer market than
most.

Like all markets, there are the inevitable market players, otherwise sometimes referred to as the speculators, and
on a pluralistic plane, there are also the investors, who may or may not hold long term stakes from time to time,
many of whom are international funds and investment houses.

Then there are the institutional owners, or otherwise called large estate owners. Between them, they have the
influence and real power to govern the dynamics of micro and sometimes macro markets geographically. Their
geographical strength is often unmatched by any. Some or all of them have developers’ background.

Of course, then there are the developers. The EAA has for all these years (until the recently enacted and
implemented the Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance) on occasion been media hounded to
task the regulation of first-hand sales behaviour of developers, from show flats orientation to saleable areas
representation.

To round it all up and as to the one mission uppermost in everyone’s mind for the EAA, is the protection of the
man on the street purchase of his home, possibly his single most significant investment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 3% | 10
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This landscape of players has more or less stayed constant for both historical and geographical reasons. Hong
Kong is a small place with a big demand for real estate. It has a vibrant economy to support a genuine need for
offices, homes and leisure. Notwithstanding this virtual technology age when more people work less in physical
offices, Hong Kong is still Asia’s premier city and an international financial centre. This need will not go away any
time soon and with the merging of the economy with Greater China it will not diminish. So the chase is to get the
rules of all these right. We need to have first-world rules. We need to have a culture of good governance for all,
with smart users and even smarter regulations, the latter to evolve and hopefully pre-empt trends and abuse. We
will then be on top of it all, not chasing buses and putting out fires.

In these six years, | look back and evaluate what the EAA has done to fulfil these benchmarks. | am happy to say
we have done lots, and done them well. Our brag sheet is full and reads like:

Mandating our trade members to use saleable areas for sales of second-hand residential sales back in 2013.
Cooperating and accepting with diligence the scrutiny of the Ombudsman.
Holding forth with our constant practice circulars and CPDs for a better profession.

Streamlining our disciplinary measures and giving our “fit and proper” person criteria constant and consistent
enforcement.

Bettering our Section 28 enforcement guidelines and keeping our enforcement regime unchecked and consistent,
with no favour or deviance.

Working with the Transport and Housing Bureau and other applicable Government departments to learn, inspire
and thereupon to translate policies and regulations into easy to understand practice guidelines for the trade.

Working with the media to vanguard the EAA cause, training our consumers to be as vigilant and as diligent as
they should be.

Keeping our finances sound and solid. At any given time, the EAA is well endowed to survive a sustained downturn
of the market which will mean a decrease of income from our licence dues. Licensee numbers remain quite volatile
with market trends.

We have also spearheaded accumulating a set-aside fund for the purchase of our own offices.

Last but not least, and of utmost importance, we have now a better trade buy-in to our mission than we ever did.
When | started with the EAA, we gave a rebate of their annual licence dues and since then, with the vicissitudes of
the markets from time to time, the trade has asked for a reduction of licence dues. It is not going to help anyone
in the trade, be it the management owners or the sales persons should there be a meagre percent of reduction.
What they need is a healthy transacted volume of business. To that end, they need an active market, be it a down
or an uptrend market. | am glad to say the EAA has not succumbed to such requests. Even in the abyss of despair
times like the 2008 crisis and the recent quite frequent downturns with the advent of the SSD and the BSD, the
market rebounded in time to give relief.

Besides the licence dues, we see a trade which is gladly maturing, both in terms of perspective of their own market

geography and turf play, as well as their own governance. This maturing process is undoubtedly aided by the EAA
regulatory and vanguard role over the years.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 53R 12
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Chairman’s ‘Message

ART

Alain de Botton related his quest for delight and beauty as a reason for travel. With such a wide and free agenda, it
is not unlike what we strive to get our trade to perceive how they should operate. Beauty can be applied to the art
of a deal, as a deal executed with integrity and precision can be no less attractive than a piece of good art. There
is indeed art in the nature of securing a deal, to which our trade members know rather well.

To get our real estate transaction to true art form means it is and should be in keeping with the times in getting
technology built into our process. We are getting an e-version of the agreement to be signed by clients with the
trade as an option.

The EAA regulatory modus can also benefit from technology. E-licensing should be a norm rather than an option
given time, and the CPD learning platform can also be e-friendly. The latter will be good for all as Iull time can be
optimised for learning. We need to offer this as a choice to our trade members. It is often not the lack of good
intentions, but rather difficult logistics of wanting to seal a deal and desiring to better oneself, having to be a
mutually exclusive choice.

RETURN

Return means reflection and enhancement. It is also time to show gratitude and be thankful for all that is done and
dealt. To that end, there are many for me personally.

| would like to say how delighted | am to have Ms Ruby Hon as our CEO as from June of this year. | have worked with
Ruby since | joined the EAA as chairman in 2008. We are privileged to have her at the EAA’s helm, a calm, able, and
experienced member of our management team for eight years. She is also an example of the internal talent growth for
the EAA. | look forward to more to come from within the management team. The EAA management team is integral
to the buoyancy of our functions. We are grateful for their commitment over the years.

For these six years, what made it pleasurable and at times of crisis, tenable, is the support and hard work of my Board
members. | would like to thank Ms Elaine Liu, Chairman of the Disciplinary Committee; Ms Serena Lau, Chairman
of the Licensing Committee and Section 28 Investigation Panel; Mr Wililam Leung, Chairman of the Practice and
Examination Committee; and Mr Ng King-wah, Chairman of the Professional Development Committee; for their
tireless commitment. | am guided and remain constantly impressed with the wisdom and insight our Board members
bring to the EAA.

With Professor Anthony Cheung, our Secretary for Transport and Housing, together with the Permanent Secretary
for Transport and Housing (Housing), Mr Duncan Pescod and now Mr Stanley Ying and their respective teams, they
have given me and the EAA wise counsel and support.

| am personally indebted to their support whenever | wish for advice.

So why a road less travelled? Well, the EAA has pioneered in many areas during these six years. We have ventured
where we have not been, and have grown and thrived. May the EAA continue to do so in years to come.

Vivien CHAN
Chairman

p.s. Written on a flight from Auckland to Singapore on 12 August 2014, in keeping with the spirit of Alain de Botton.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 53R 14
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The EAA held steadfastly to its
work and continued its efforts
in regulating estate agents and
promote their compliance.”
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| am pleased to present the Annual report of the Estate Agents Authority (“EAA”) for the year 2013/14. The report
is going to outline the EAA’s on-going efforts in regulating the estate agency trade, as well as the measures taken
to address new challenges. Our efforts in shaping a better estate agency and promoting fairness and transparency
in property transactions in Hong Kong will also be presented.

Navigating through difficult times

2013/14 has been a challenging year for the property market. Probably due to the effects of the Government’s
demand-side control measures, the property market was stagnant in 2013/14. Compared with the previous
year, the total number of property transactions dropped significantly by 49% to 59,705 while the consideration
slipped to $392 billion, a year-on-year decrease of 42%. The secondary residential sector has been hardest hit
by the Government’s property curbs, with a more drastic drop of 49% in the number of transactions and 47% in
consideration.

On the other hand, the property market remained as a focus of public concern. Measures planned by the
Government to enhance consumer protection and control the demand in the property market were finalised and
implemented. For example, the Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance came into effect in April 2013.
The Sales of First Hand Residential Properties Authority (“SRPA”) set up to implement the Ordinance also came
into full operation. The proposed amendments to the Stamp Duty Ordinance relating to the Special Stamp Duty
(“*SSD”) and the Buyer Stamp Duty (“BSD”) were also passed by the Legislative Council in February 2014. The SSD
and BSD have been in place since October 2012 as a demand-side control measure to cool down the overheated
property market.

Under the stagnant market conditions, the number of licences decreased by 4% over that of previous year. The
total number of individual licensees slipped to 35,450 as at the end of March 2014. The number of qualifying
examination candidates also recorded a significant drop of 42% in 2013/14 when compared to that of 2012/13.

At such difficult times, the EAA’s income in 2013/14 fell around 3%. We must continue to closely monitor the
market situation and the trend of licensee numbers. It is of utmost importance that we observe prudent financial
principles.

Nonetheless, the EAA held steadfastly to its work and continued its efforts in regulating estate agents and promote
their compliance.

A new era in property market

One of the highlights of the year in the property market was the implementation of the Residential Properties (First-
hand Sales) Ordinance in April 2013. A landmark ordinance to enhance consumer protection in first-hand property
transactions, the Ordinance has impacted many aspects of the first sale of residential properties. As estate agents
are heavily involved in such sales, the EAA as a regulator has strived to ensure their compliance of the Ordinance.

A relevant Practice Circular was updated and issued, setting out guidelines on the conduct of promotional activities
and provision of property information in the first sale of residential properties to facilitate the trade to observe the
law. The EAA also constantly reminded the trade of the importance of compliance through organising seminars,
conducting educational visits and other communication means.

The EAA also closely monitored the compliance of the Circular since it took effect. The overall compliance of the

guidelines was satisfactory but we noticed a few non-compliant cases. The EAA followed up alleged breaches
swiftly and has also maintained in close contact with the SRPA on matters relating to compliance by estate agents.
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The adoption of saleable area was another
important event in property market. In the
previous year, the EAA took the lead to
promote the use of saleable area in the
secondary market and put a great deal of
efforts to preparing the trade and the public for
this. In 2013/14, the EAA continued to monitor
the compliance of the related Practice Circular
after it took effect in January 2013. The majority
of the non-compliant cases and complaints
were discovered shortly after the Circular took
effect and most of the agents took rectification
actions speedily. The EAA is happy to see that
the majority of the trade has complied with the
requirements of the Circular.

Promotion of compliance

It is part of the EAA’s vision to ensure estate
agents abide by the law. In addition to the
abovementioned Practice Circular on the
conduct in promotional activities and provision
of property information in the sale of first-hand
residential properties, the EAA continued to
issue practice circulars to provide guidelines
and directives on estate agency trade practices
from time to time in light of changing market conditions and Government’s new measures. In 2013/14, circulars
covering the topics of protection of personal data, completion of provisional agreement and the execution of estate
agency agreements by electronic means were issued.

In the year, the EAA implemented a new measure to promote compliance in the trade. To heighten the estate
agency trade’s vigilance against non-compliances and improve their compliance in the long run, the EAA launched
a New Scheme for handling disciplinary cases with effect from 1 January 2014. Under the Scheme, licensees
committing the eight specified breaches for the first time since the effective date would, subject to the terms of
the Scheme, not be disciplined but any subsequent breaches within a two-year period might attract more severe
sanctions. It is hoped that the Scheme will alert licensees to straightforward and prevalent breaches and direct
their mind to a better practice and system of work to ensure compliance.

At the same time, the EAA continued its educational efforts in enhancing compliance of the law, the EAA’s Code
of Ethics and guidelines by the trade. The number of compliance checks conducted in 2013/14 increased by 11%
to 2,951 compared to previous year. During these checks, licensees were educated on new practice circulars
and requirements relating to estate agency practice. The EAA also constantly reminded the trade to comply with
new guidelines by organising seminars and meetings with the trade, and sending letters and SMS to them. A new
booklet titled “llustrations to Code of Ethics” was also published in the year with the aim of enhancing licensees’
understanding of the Code of Ethics through real-life examples.
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Professionalisation of the trade

Following the success of the 15" Anniversary Professional Forum held last year, the EAA organised another
Professional Forum in June 2013 to explore the direction of and opportunities brought by the professional
development of estate agents. Speakers from different backgrounds were invited to share their views on the
importance of the estate agency trade’s professionalism. The response of the Forum was positive, with over 200
participants attending the forum and exchanging views on the subject.

In addition to inciting discussions on the future development of the estate agency trade, the EAA continued to
implement and enhance the Continuing Professional Development (“CPD”) Scheme. To encourage licensees’
participation in the CPD Scheme, several incentive measures were introduced in 2013/14. These initiatives include
presenting premium CPD Attainment Symbols to licensees who have respectively achieved the CPD attainment
target in three consecutive years and five consecutive years; allowing licensees to carry forward CPD points
accumulated in excess of the CPD attainment target in one year to the next, up to a limit of 6 CPD points.

Communication with the trade and consumers

The EAA considers it important to maintain continuous and two-way communications with the estate agency
trade. As a regular dialogue, the EAA continued to hold quarterly liaison meetings with trade associations and meet
frontline licensees in various districts through the four focus group meetings held in the year.

We understand that the trade faced difficult times in 2013/14. To help the trade relayed their concerns and
opinions on the Government’s measures, the EAA arranged a special meeting in which the Government
representatives and the trade representatives sat together and exchanged their stances and views on the cooling
measures. The EAA also showed support for the trade by relaying their suggestions to various Government
departments such as the Rating and Valuation Department.

The EAA regards informed consumers as the first defence against malpractice by estate agents. Hence, we
continued our efforts in promoting consumer related education and raising awareness of the EAA through
collaborations with the media and other initiatives. In the year, the EAA organised three press conferences, issued
17 press releases, and arranged 13 feature interviews. A total of 41 articles by the EAA were also contributed to the
media to promote consumer related education and the EAA’s work. Amongst them, some articles were in English
to provide useful information to English readers.

Following the Announcements in Public Interest on “saleable area” and “signing of estate agency agreements”
launched last year, the EAA continued to produce two consumer videos on the subject of “land search” and
“permitted use of properties” respectively. Such videos are available at the EAA’s website and were promoted at
some property websites through an online campaign. The EAA also held roving exhibitions at several MTR stations
with display panels set up at the venues, providing useful information for consumers.

Conclusion

The year in review has been an exciting and challenging one. The EAA has discharged various duties in the year. |
would like to express my gratitude to the Board for its guidance and support, in particular the EAA Board Chairman
and Members whose wisdom and advice has inspired me and my fellow colleagues throughout the year.

Our work could not have been accomplished without our hard-working and dedicated staff. | would also like take
this opportunity to express my appreciation to all my colleagues in the EAA Administration.

Ruby HON
Chief Executive Officer
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As a gateﬁee}oer: Quaﬁ’fying Examination and Licensing

A rigorous gate-keeping mechanism plays an important role in the regulatory regime of estate agents. Through
organising qualifying examinations and scrutinising licence applications, the EAA strives to ensure that only those
who meet the required standards be allowed to practise in the trade.

Qualifying Examinations

The qualifying examinations serve to assess whether persons who wish to practise in the estate agency trade
possess the requisite knowledge to provide estate agency services. Currently, there are two types of qualifying
examinations: (i) the Estate Agents Qualifying Examination (“EAQE”) and (i) the Salespersons Qualifying
Examination (“SQE”).

The qualifying examinations are administered by the Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority on behalf
of the EAA.

A comparison of the EAQE and SQE is as follows:

EAQE SQE
Frequency 4 times a year 6 times a year
Examination Time 3 hours 2 hours 30 minutes
Part 1: 30 stand-alone questions Part 1: 40 stand-alone questions
Number of Questions Part 2: 20 questions based on one or Part 2: 10 questions based on one or two
two case studies case studies
Format Multiple-choice questions
Pass Mark At least 60% of correct answers in each part

Part 1 of the examination paper is intended to test candidates’ knowledge of various parts of the syllabi of the
EAQE and SQE, including the EAO and its subsidiary legislation, the Code of Ethics, practice circulars, and other
relevant laws and practices applicable to the estate agency practice.

Part 2 of the examination paper, which contains one or two case studies, is intended to test in an integrated way
the practical knowledge expected of estate agents or salespersons, including interpretation of land search, use
of prescribed forms, the requirements under the regulatory regime, other practical issues such as conveyancing
and tenancy, and the ethical standards and professional integrity required of estate agents or salespersons in the
performance of estate agency work.

Since licensed estate agents could undertake an estate agency business in addition to being an estate agent, the
questions in the examination paper of the EAQE also test the knowledge expected of estate agents in property
valuation, effective management of agency and supervision of salespersons in the compliance of the requirements
under the regulatory regime. These areas are not included in the syllabus of the SQE.
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FoRI T4 35.7% & 46.3% °

H2012/13FEML EREEHEREBEAREAREXREEAREAMAZ - DA TEL35.9% &
46.8% £ 4,470 A} 4,802 A ©

F2013/14FE HEREEREAMEXEEREANTFHEKREXE39.6%/%40.9% * M2012/13
FEMEZEANEEEARA46.1% °

DNMERZFANSERZEASURBEZ - BEBR  S2FZLENEGREaRNREEFENZSE - &
BN RETHER - E2013/14FERELXBERZEANZ AR EBEREXINLERENLENE
27%  ERHMERBERZN  EFABTEXINLEFNZEALXRALOE41%  M2012/13FEH
KRB DRI AE26% K& 39% °

ZEEFIAZBERKBETEENAL  BEDEEE  BERYE - |17 5 TERME-
BRZ2MEREANALHNEA49% -

HEEHEEHEEEEEEEEEEEHEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE EHEEEEEEEEEEEEESE
EREAZTLE AR

Number of Candidates of Qualifying Examinations

-\ mEEEERER
10,000 9031 Salespersons Qualifying Examination

8,000
- m i EREERER
7,234 *6,;74\ Estate Agents Qualifying Examination

4,470

4,000

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
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As a gateﬁeqaer: anﬁ’fying Examination and Licensing

Number of Candidates

A total of 4,885 candidates registered for the EAQE and 5,412 candidates registered for the SQE in 2013/14,
which was a decrease of about 35.7% and 46.3%, as compared to those of the previous year.

Compared to that in 2012/13, the number of candidates actually sitting the EAQE and SQE decreased by about
35.9% and 46.8% to 4,470 and 4,802 respectively.

In 2013/14, the average pass rate for the EAQE and SQE were 39.6% and 40.9%, as against 46.1% for both
examinations in 2012/13.

Increasingly more candidates with higher educational levels sat for the qualifying examinations. Statistics indicated
that the pass rates of candidates with higher educational qualifications were higher than those of candidates with
lower educational qualifications, which was quite logical. In 2013/14, the percentage of candidates taking the
SQE who were of tertiary or above educational level was about 27%, and that for the EAQE was about 41%, as
compared to 26% and 39% in 2012/13.

Candidates included students and people from a wide range of occupational backgrounds, including property

management, construction and surveying, banking, accounting, retail and wholesale business. About 49% of the
candidates sat the examination for the first time.

EREASHKE

Pass Rates of Qualifying Examinations

60% mEEEERER
46.1% Salespersons Qualifying Examination
43.6% — T ~—
— 46.19
50% % 40.9%
| ~a S TR 3 N
mEREEERESR
40% 89.6% 39.6% Estate Agents Qualifying Examination
30%
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
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Number of Attempts at Examinations held in 2013/14

B = XEZ First attempt B &~ Second attempt B %=%=LA LFEZ Third attempt or above B 2 BREER Unknown

20.2% —.

13.0% —~
19.2% J\ 20.2% &
HEREERER e 2 e
Estate Agents Qualifying Examination Salespersons Qualifying Examination
ZHEBRRERE

Candidates’ Educational Background and Pass Rate

SEEHEHEFEEHEEHEHEEEEHEHEEHEEEEEEIE

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
BF Z4EE® ZE R ZHEE=
Education |Percentage of AR |Percentage of &1 2R |Percentage of ER=R
Level candidates Pass rate candidates Pass rate candidates Pass rate
EE? 39.8% 31.4% 34.6% 36.1% 31.6% 22.7%
iiﬁﬁﬁ% q;??;;i 5.9% 41% 75%  42.8% 6.6%  33.4%
EI . .
Estate Agents k=af L +
Qualifying Tertiary 37.7% 42.8% 39.3% 47.2% 41.4% 41.4%
Examination or above
ﬁf:jnj\;f 16.6% 36.3% 18.6% 43.1% 20.4% 39.9%
EFI ﬂ (o) 0, 0, 0, 0, (o)
F5 56.6% 34.3% 47.7% 36.2% 43.4% 31.6%
i%ﬁﬁﬁ‘ q;giif;: 75%  46.4% 13.4%  41.6% 147%  32.8%
EI . .
Salespersons k= A |
Qualifying Tertiary 22.1% 52.2% 25.7% 49.3% 26.6% 46.0%
Examination or above
fn)rjnj\vj: 13.8% 39.3% 13.2% 43.7% 15.3% 36.3%
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As a Gatekeeper: Qualifying Examination and Licensing

EEEEEEES

BE2013/14FEERNEREANZENRBESR

Occupational Background of Candidates Registered for the Qualifying Examinations held in 2013/14

B tEREE 19.9% B EEER 1.6%
Estate agency trade Hotel/catering
W =E 4w 8.2% W ETHE 1.3%
Retail/wholesale business Clerical
®IT/ B RE 107% W2 1.2%
Banking/accounting/investment Legal
HEREBEERER LIE == 4.6% | s 1.0%
Estate Agents Property management Tourism
Qualifying Examination )
W #E A= 4.0% S R 0.5%
/ Construction/surveying Sales & marketing
/ == 51% [ MR 0.7%
Students Information technology
B #E At EgRS 2.5% | g 1.7%
Education/social service Unemployed
B R% 3.5% B &xrs 22.3%
Insurance Unknown
W A 11.2%
Others
| RZESEE 12.6% B EIE 1.8%
Property management Clerical
W =& HE 13.1% | Rid 1.2%
Retail/wholesale business Tourism
B 11.9% B HERHE 0.5%
Students Sales & marketing
A = s =
AXBERER SBE B 51% B &% 1.7%
Salespersons Hotel/catering Unemployed
Qualifying Examination . . .
W R g RE 7.7% BN 0.3%
Banking/accounting/investment Information technology
¢ =Y 23% [ x 0.4%
I Construction/surveying Legal
B Rz 3.5% B iBgzs 2.3%
Insurance Salesperson-trainee
B %5 HeRs 21% [l B 21.3%
Education/social service Unknown
B E 12.2%
Others
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354502 BEABBHATESR 18,023 AFEEXEME 16,527 AFEHENRE (@A)
RRER o

RE

xat

CEERAMEIITOMEFTRENEARRE K EFERA33.5% °

EEREHNE - MNERREF UBRPABATEEERNT - FA EEREBT 222 RERHEF - R
AEERBARETAEEER  KUFFER  HAXRBEFEARROEEANE] -

MRFEATBEERBESARR  MOERUKEE AFE EERERZESHBIET 27
B RARBHEFEATERAAREESAERRN[EEAE] -

BEKFEFRD M

HZE2014FE3A31H " 31.2%HEFE AR
BARERN FEF - 3200 FBAHER
BEMRHPRZ

LA2014F 3 A31 HETE  HEAMNFHF
A3 7R BMEFERBHE—# -

REXZBHRE

RKZEIERBEBDAUNNRIELE - &
Z2014F3HA31H " 93% WM ERIEER

RE—MEH MARKLEEEEHIIA L FP 0 EERILH M REBARR - R EFERD 33.5%
L ] 7] A ° During the year, the number of newly granted individual licences
MERBRIEDR 1% decreased by 33.5%.

! BB ALERRZEREFE RO 12EANEEERES AT ZREEKEA
2 ZE AN TR AN1999E 2001 F 1) = F @K MM E it E R 18 i M AZEE TR -
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As a gateﬁee}oer: @Laﬁfying Examination and Licensing

Licensing

To be granted a licence, an individual must have attained 18 years of age, completed an educational level of Form
Five of secondary education or its equivalent, passed the relevant qualifying examination' and be considered “fit
and proper”.

An individual may apply for a salesperson’s licence or an estate agent’s licence (individual). Companies may only
apply for an estate agent’s licence (company). Holders of a salesperson’s licence may only work for licensed estate
agents where there is no such restriction for holders of an estate agent’s licence. Each estate agent is required
to, before carrying out any estate agency business at any place under a particular business name, apply for a
statement of particulars of business (“SPOB”) for that place and name.

The number of individual licences as at 31 March 2014 dropped by 4.2% over that of 31 March 2013 to 35,450.
The number of company licences and SPOBs were respectively at 3,036 and 6,248, representing an increase of
1.1% and a decrease of 1.3% respectively over those of last year.

Among the 35,450 individual licences, 18,923 were salesperson’s licences and 16,527 were estate agent’s
licences (individual).

During the year, the EAA granted 3,370 new individual licences, a decrease of 33.5% compared to that of the
previous year.

The EAA vets each licence application to ensure compliance with the relevant laws. In the year under review,
222 applications were refused for different reasons, such as applicants not having the required educational
qualifications or not being considered “fit and proper” persons to be granted, or hold or continue to hold a licence.
A licence may be revoked if the licensee is no longer eligible to continue to hold a licence. During the year, a total

of 27 licences were revoked by the Licensing Committee because the relevant licensees were not considered “fit
and proper” to continue to hold a licence.

Educational Attainment and Age Distribution

As at 31 March 2014, 31.2% of licensees had a tertiary educational level or above, and 3.2% had an educational
level below Form Five?,

As at 31 March 2014, the average age of licensees was 35.7 years, which was the same as that of the previous
year.

Size of Operations

The bulk of estate agency operations remained small in scale. As at 31 March 2014, 93% of agencies operated
as single-shop businesses and less than 1% had five or more shops.

! The qualifying examination must have been passed within 12 months immediately before the date of an application for the grant of a licence.
2 These individuals continued to be qualified for licences because of the exemption measures introduced during the three-year transition period
from 1999 to 2001.
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EBRANERKFE ($201453 A31 B5t&E)

Educational Level of Licensees (as at 31/3/2014)

B THUT BelowF.5 B ERFALERSEFE Completed F.5 or equivalent B KEIA L Tertiary or above
—4.8% —1.9% —3.2%
' 23.4% ’ 31.2% '
40.0% —_
74.7% 65.6%
55.2%
HhEE IR (LA BRI A A HEBMBREAA 2
Holders of estate agent’s licence (individual) Holders of salesperson’s licence Overall

HEEHEHEEEEFEFEEHEEEEEEHEEE

R ARER (R 2014F3A318

Age of Licensees (as at 31/3/2014)
FHL Age <21 21-830 31-40 41-50 51-60 >60

HEMRIE (BA) BIERE A

[0) [¢) [0) [¢) [0) [0)
Holders of estate agent’s licence (individual) 3.7% 18.5% 31.2% 33.7% 11.2% 1.7%

Ak 2 5 e R
ERBRIFEA o 14.8% 30.3% 28.0% 221% 4.5% 0.3%
Holders of salesperson’s licence

EEE Overall 9.6% 24.8% 29.5% 27.5% 7.6% 1.0%

HEEHEHEEEHEEHEFEHEHEHEHEEHEEHEHES

R i A PR 2 BV B A AR 201443 A 31 Bt )

Licensees’ Choice of Language in Communication (as at 31/3/2014)

| 32 Chinese W %32 English

13.1%\’ —86.9% ‘ '

HERIE (EA) BRISE A HEEXBRRFAA it

Holders of estate agent’s licence (individual) Holders of salesperson’s licence Overall
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As a Gatekeeper: Qualifying Examination and Licensing

BE=FHEBREXFRHASHUE

Number of Licences and SPOBs in the Past Three Years

40,000 37,001
34,831 35,450
m (B ARERABE (1) + (i)
Total number of individual licences (i) + (ii)
30,000
B MR ()
19371 20,329 18,923 Salesperson’s licence (i)
20000 g - ———— wEREEARE )
Estate agent’s licence (individual) (i)
= -
- 16,672 16,527
15,460
10,000 BEFEHAE
6,036 6,333 6,048  SPOBs
w i E R (A E) IR
2’7.82 3'0.04 3‘0.36 Estate agent’s licence (company)
31/3/2012 31/3/2013 31/3/2014

BE=FHA/LNEARBHE

New Licences (Individual) in the Past Three Years

s et @
Total Total Total
-6,097 -5,065 - -3,370-
6,000 ‘ 3 : ‘ ; ‘
5,000 | } | | | |
4,000 3 : : : :
3,000 3 : : j \
: 1 ! ! W zxsme
2,000 1 Salesperson’s licence
1,000 : AR (EA) 25
’ Estate agent’s licence (individual)
0
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
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Mode of Operation of Estate Agency Businesses (as at 31/3/2014)

SR
Total SPOBs

R 6,248- - - - - - oo
1 1 !
' |

|
5,000 4,420 | |
|
4,000 : :
! I

|
3,000 : ‘
|
! I

2,000 : 1,579

|

|

1,000 T

249
0 |
BRDFEEE* R BELE
Limited Companies* Partnerships Sole proprietorships

* £ 3,036 @D Al #F AL &
* Operated by 3,036 company licenses

NitEEERBERBEERERERE

EERETHEHEMEBMEFHELLCARE([REE])R2010F 11 A3HR WiE - FEAM
HESHEREEXERERFENEAR - LS EHSTEMBMMERBERRAERATR
MEBEE  AREEMBITENREER -

BREHE ERENEE  EERVNPEENHHEBR EHENSERMENRE - 2B YT HEFIH
BOEINRERZA - AR IBELBBEAR  2NERFREENEMBEXER - EJ7 7340
ﬁJ’Eﬁﬁﬂ/ BB ANKRS  RHERBEAETLRREDETMEKRKEE - EHNEREY
BHmES > EHEHBRTEINFKEANER - UBEREEESINE -

EHELZYET  BE2014F3A31H  HE1BEBFEMEREFFATFE2RENTMES » 5
ﬁSO%WiﬂgiﬁzFﬁE%ﬁmﬁ“”)%?ttﬁﬂ’]ﬁé‘.'iﬁﬂ °
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REBEKHFE (R2014F3 831 B3 E)
Size of Operation of Estate Agency Businesses (as at 31/3/2014)

BN
Number of shops™
BRARIKLE
Limited companies
AR
Partnerships

Sole proprietorships

1 2 3 4 5-10 11-20 21-30 >30

2,799 155 38 12 19 8 1 4

220 6 3 2 0 0 0 0

1,423 57 7 3 1 0 0 0

* o EERENSE
* i.e. SPOBs

Scheme on Mutual Recognition of Professional Qualifications of Estate Agents
in the Mainland and Hong Kong

The EAA and the China Institute of Real Estate Appraisers and Agents (“CIREA”) entered into an agreement on
3 November 2010 to lay down the foundation for the mutual recognition of professional qualifications of estate
agents in the Mainland and Hong Kong. The arrangement was intended to promote professional exchanges and
cooperation between practitioners of the estate agency trade in the Mainland and Hong Kong, and to facilitate the
long-term development of the industry of both sides.

According to the agreement, the EAA and the CIREA will each nominate a certain number of qualified estate agents
to participate in tailor-made training courses and examinations organised by the other party in the following five
years. Upon completing a training course and passing an examination, the participants may then apply for the
relevant registration certificate or licence. The signing parties also reached agreement regarding the handling of
complaints against licensees under the scheme and the imposition of disciplinary sanctions against non-compliant
licensees. A notification mechanism under which each side would report information about licensees who had
been disciplined was also established to ensure the effectiveness of the regulatory regime.

As at 31 March 2014, 188 Hong Kong estate agents held a registration certificate issued by the CIREA and 30
Mainland estate agents held an estate agent’s licence issued by the EAA, both pursuant to the arrangement.
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EERBRERAEETAHERENRNED - Fit > EERLBERFMARHRITCGEENREFD)
REMBEED MRS REETEERROKERBRVEISRLENER -

EERTEABATCKRF BEKEMESERMERESH L BMOIBRERTEABESE - AEMR
il EERBNETRBATEANPNEFTFAINBLTORERE  AEFREHTOHERS -
HE

BB K FHEE A

F2013/14FE  EERRBEATIRHRFER  EPRBLorBR_FEEWE REL49F (L
10%) R —FEEWE -

FE2013/145FE  EERTHEESTIRIFMEE  EP 256 7R (1545%) WIETEA L » AEIEMEK L
MEZREP  RAE1STRE-—FEETYWEEN - Z256RAXN T ERBEEITEREIRERAE P RE
BEEEAA(KEBREYN) RKRAEETFPRIIEEHMERER S URKBETLWEMIKRE
mETRHEMERKIR -

o EERTREFREET 6,706 RABMERNER P REMEREXFRAEN - BT
XEEH o

REFEREE

Number of Complaint Cases

800
604
600 538 554 573
498 473
400
B zraEz
Received
200 .
B a A%
Completed*
0
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

FATKNEARDD REFEENEAR  SPLERAEBNLYEN FLEZEGERENER  URHTHBRENREEZBETKILAER -
Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years. The figures include prima facie cases referred to and dealt with by the
Disciplinary Committee and non-prima facie cases disposed of by the Operations Division.
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‘As a CRegu(ator: Law Q:"nforcement,
@iscip[i’nary Actions and Lega[ Services

It is the EAA’s mission to regulate the practice of the estate agency trade. The EAA must therefore enforce the EAO
and its subsidiary legislation in an impartial and effective manner in order to raise the level of compliance among
practitioners and ensure property transactions are conducted in a fair and transparent manner.

The EAA seeks to ensure the trade's compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements through investigating
complaints, conducting compliance inspections and disciplining non-compliant estate agency practitioners. In
response to the ever-changing market conditions, the EAA also reviews the practices of the trade and issues new
practice circulars from time to time to provide new guidelines for the trade to follow.

Law Enforcement

Complaints and Enquiries Handling

In 2013/14, the EAA received 473 complaints. The
majority were related to second-hand residential
properties, with only 49 cases, or about 10%,
related to first-hand residential properties.

In 2013/14, the EAA concluded 573 complaints,
of which 256, or about 45%, were substantiated.
Fifteen of the substantiated cases concerned first-
hand residential properties. Key allegations of the
substantiated cases included mishandling/failing
to explain the provisional agreement for sale and
purchase (or the provisional tenancy agreement), |
failing to enter into estate agency agreements with L
clients or to explain the estate agency agreements ~ EEREBAZMEFHHERRDAFINAREEOEH -

to clients, and failing to conduct a land search or ;ggniéﬁawgilﬁg E?ggt'irgsslﬂom the public and the trade on estate
provide a copy of a land search to purchasers.

In addition, the EAA handled 6,706 public and trade enquiries on estate agency related legal issues, conduct and
practices during the year.

Compliance Inspections and Self-initiated Investigations

In 2013/14, the EAA conducted 2,951 compliance inspections, of which 1,425 were at first-sale sites and 1,526
at estate agency shops. The EAA also carried out 598 inspections of online advertisements posted by estate
agencies. As a result of these inspections, the EAA instigated investigations into 24 suspected non-compliance
cases. During the period, the EAA completed 95 self-initiated investigation cases, of which 72 were substantiated.
Out of the 72 cases, 14 were related to first-hand residential properties.

During compliance inspections, the EAA enforcement team also took time to educate practitioners on the EAO,
its subsidiary legislation, Code of Ethics and other guidelines issued by the EAA to ensure they were conversant
with the related issues.

The EAA also launched investigations into 68 licensees/licence applicants who had allegedly either made false
declarations or provided false documents during the application process; and 28 cases of licence application
by licensees and new applicants with criminal records. They were suspected of failing to meet the statutory
requirement of being “fit and proper” persons.
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Results of Cases Completed*

W EMASL Substantiated W 5fEAK I Unsubstantiated W EHR 2 Insufficient information to pursue | Hft¥ Others*

180

237

—256

139— 13—

A8 Total #EEL Total 428 Total
538 ‘ 554 55 573
‘J B \
78—
124
117 149
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

* FATKNERBY REFEENEAR  EPLRERAZBERLTEN TLAEZESRENER - URATHHEENREE B TR LAEZE -
Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years. The figures include prima facie cases referred to and dealt with by the
Disciplinary Committee and non-prima facie cases disposed of by the Operations Division.

# BIELIEHEE  BUBRFMARGEEENERE

# Includes cases which were curtailed, withdrawn or not proven.

MER LB HE

£2013/14F 5 - EERHAEITT 2,951 RE - EF 1,426 RBKE—FER - HH 1,526 X 2K
EHENRERM - W EEEMHMERENBLESHEIT T8 HE - EERETKER © 524
THBRERAREIHRAAE - TR EERETKTISFTEIHAEME > Eh72RIEMWKIL -
FEEBEKIN72REART  RE14ARSIR—FEEYE -

'
.

E2013/14F % @ EERUEMENRIERMHEB1,500K
In 2013/14, the EAA conducted more than 1,500 compliance checks at estate agency shops.
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‘As a Regufator: Law fnforcement,
@isci]ﬂfinary Actions and Lega[ Services

KEIRE

Number of Inspections

2,000
1,553
1,500 1,425 7 L B
1,282
1,100 1,105
1,000
B Fesny
First-sale sites*
500
WEREEHE
Estate agency shops
0
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
* BIESBRTER « BRHEERE KA -
* Includes the development sites, sales offices and vicinity areas.

ETHAE

Self-initiated Investigations

(EE3=

Number of Cases 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
FATRHER EZ
Non-compliance cases completed in the year* 126 160 95

* FATRHBERBD BEFHLOESR -

*

Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years.

ERRENERER
Results of Cases Completed*
W 3EfEA . Substantiated W BTN Unsubstantiated W Hft# Others”
11
23
1 7, 80 - 124 . \‘ 72
13\ RN

#@EL Total
160

4 Total
95

@ Total
126

29—

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

* FARKOERISDATFRAUOER  EFRERAFERNITEN FTLRZESRENER  ARBHTHBEENRAFZERETIKIHESER -
Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years. The figures include prima facie cases referred to and dealt with by the
Disciplinary Committee and other cases disposed of by the Operations Division due to insufficient evidence.

# BREKRIEASNMREZTENER -

# Includes cases which were curtailed and those that were not proven.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 53R 50



-

R

AREE NE  RETHREEEE

EREBRIED  RERAITHMABNMESAREXEFRCLEREGRD) MEWBEG (BT R)DME
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o BEERBAET 8BRS MERFRREFLERBZANRBHRERIGOFRARREF
AN AR 28 RABLFRTHENIMA BB ARENEREFNER - PSR REFTEEEN
[EEAE] B

HYRERFERFEHEREAIRUERIMNERA RREFEANAE

Investigations into Licensees/Licence Applicants Who Had Allegedly Made False

Declarations or Provided False Documents during the Application Process

EREE
Number of cases

80
60
40

27 =3 olES

24 Received
21
20 15 16 '
[Elp el

I Completed*

0
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

FATROERBD BEFRILOMESR -

Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years.

(—FEEMEHEGODIEN2013F 4 A20 AN - AEZHPINEN  EERTNEREHNE
BE ORBERBELET FEEVEHEIPENRTRIEEDEEH T EEMRIES - 1R - &F
BIFICRBUETAIE - ET T 1,476 R—FRBHEHKE - FRENFBRE  ETHENKENH
AR  EERTHREXRATEBRONERNME -

EERR2014F1AZBIRE] 1T BET FARMERECE2E - FEEVEHER [KE
B NENF  BRAZEAZZHEREEREERMNMAN  RRWEER®EE - §15$5,000 * &
AE-—FARBEERNFERERECETNI2A2S  -MZREXEMBHERERF - K
HEENEIFS$60,000 - EHESE  EERKIRAIRANKRBERITENRFEMERTR  UREHE
EE-TFTOEMSONG - I EEREER - FTAEEZNXHEEERRBETHE  ARHESR
WERER -—FOEHETNRTHNHEER -

Btz AEERMHMEREBEEE —_FEEVERIHRETAARENMBELAREREER
2013F1 A1EHEREH - HE2014F3A31H EERHEE 1 ZHBENKRF - WHEIBEIZFTE
BMER EEREFVERXAEBTZAEBENER  ABINERERTEZBE EXERT
ABIEIE > MALDMWEREBIFARBIELENE - EERRABABOANEEHLETZRENHRTE
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‘As a Regu[ator: Law fnforcement,
@iscijofinary Actions and Lega[ Services

HELRTENEEA TERAFANAE

Investigations into Licensees/Licence Applicants Who Had Previous Criminal Records

EEI

Number of Cases

50
43
40 35
32

30 28

50 21 W 2EoER
Received

10 B TR ARz
Completed*

0
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* FATRHERBD BEFHIOESR -

*

Some cases completed in a year were brought forward from previous years.

The Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance came into effect on 29 April 2013. In response to the
new legislation, the EAA on the same day issued a Practice Circular advising estate agents on the conduct of
promotional activities and the provision of property information for the first sale of residential properties. Since then,
the EAA has also stepped up enforcement action and conducted 1,475 checks on the first-sale sites. Through
organising seminars, conducting educational visits and other communication means, the EAA has regularly
updated the trade on the importance of compliance of the legislation.

In January 2014, a covert operation by the EAA revealed a case involving an estate agent allegedly making loans
to prospective purchasers when promoting first-hand residential properties. Investigation revealed that the estate
agent had breached EAA regulations and subsequent to disciplinary action, the agent was reprimanded, fined
$5,000 and required to acquire 12 points under the Continuing Professional Development Scheme. The estate
agency company employing the agent was also reprimanded and fined $60,000. On the enforcement side, the
EAA employed different strategies to combat malpractices and non-compliances to safeguard the interests of
consumers in the first-sale residential properties market. Furthermore, the EAA continued to maintain close liaison
with the Sales of First-hand Residential Properties Authority to monitor effectively the conduct and behavior of
estate agents in such first-sale properties market.

In addition, the EAA’s Practice Circular on the Provision of Saleable Area Information for Second-hand Residential
Properties also came into effect on 1 January 2013. As at 31 March 2014, the EAA has so far received 11 relevant
complaint cases and detected 93 non-compliant cases. Efforts were made to closely monitor the compliance
of the guidelines. It was however noted that most of the non-compliant cases were discovered shortly after the
Circular took effect and most of the agents had made rectification immediately. The EAA was of the view that the
majority of the trade had complied with the requirements of the Circular.
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Disciplinary Actions

Inquiry Hearings

Where the EAA’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) has reason to believe that a licensee has failed to comply with the
EAO and/or its subsidiary legislation; or is not eligible to hold or continue to hold a licence; or has failed to comply
with a specified condition attached to his licence, a submission shall be made by the CEO to the Disciplinary
Committee for consideration if an inquiry hearing should be conducted.

If the Disciplinary Committee is satisfied that the complaint or submission is well-founded, it may exercise
disciplinary powers including admonishing or reprimanding the licensee concerned, attaching/varying a specified
condition attached to his licence, suspending/revoking his licence, imposing a fine and making a costs order.

In 2013/14, the Disciplinary Committee adjudicated 394 cases of which 375 were substantiated (i.e. 95.17%). As
a result, a total of 390 licensees were disciplined, among whom 233 were individual licensees® and 157 company
licensees.

During the same period, one licence was revoked and 26 licences were suspended for periods ranging from seven
days to four months. Licensees disciplined were found to have been engaged in unprofessional conduct such as
making misrepresentations, failing to protect and promote the interests of their clients, or failing to exercise due
care and due diligence.

A total of 237 licensees were fined, with the fines ranging from HK$500 to HK$60,000.

AL ERIX R

Number of Inquiry Hearings Held
500
400 404 394
300 279
200
100

0

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

3 Including sole-proprietors and partners of estate agency firms.
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New Scheme for Disciplinary Cases

To heighten the estate agency trade’s vigilance against non-compliances and improve their compliance in the
long run, a New Scheme (“the Scheme”) was launched on 1 January 2014 to deal with some straight-forward
and prevalent breaches under the EAO, Estate Agents Practice (General Duties and Hong Kong Residential
Properties) Regulation and Estates Agents (Licensing) Regulation. Under the Scheme, licensees committing the
eight specified breaches for the first time since the effective date would, subject to the terms of the Scheme, not
be disciplined but any subsequent breaches within a two-year period might attract more severe sanctions.

A total of 31 licensees were invited to opt for the Scheme as at 31 March 2014. Among the 29 licensees who have
replied, 21 opted for the Scheme, representing a participation rate of 72.4%.

Legal Services

The EAA reviews the practices of the trade and issues practice circulars to provide guidelines and directives on
estate agency practice from time to time, to enable licensees to comply with their duties under the law. In the year,
four circulars were issued.

In light of the requirements of the Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance, which came into effect on
29 April 2013, the EAA issued a Practice Circular setting out detailed guidelines on the conduct of promotional
activities and the provision of property information for the first sale of residential properties to facilitate the trade to
observe and comply with the new law. To assist the trade in understanding the guidelines, a set of “Questions and
Answers” and a “checklist for licensees” on the relevant requirements of the Practice Circular were also prepared
and uploaded to the EAA website.

In view of the implementation of the Personal Data (Privacy) (Amendment) Ordinance 2012 which enhanced the
protection of privacy rights in relation to personal data and introduced, among other changes, a new regulatory
regime on direct marketing, the EAA issued a revised Practice Circular on “Protection of Personal Data”. The
revised Practice Circular set out matters to which licensees must pay attention in respect of the collection, use and
handling of personal data, and the use of personal data for direct marketing, in order to comply with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance. The EAA also prepared additional “Questions and Answers” to enhance the trade’s
understanding of the revised Practice Circular, and samples of the “Privacy Policy Statement” and “Personal
Information Collection Statement” were also updated for the trade’s reference.

To remind licensees that they should exercise due care and due diligence when completing a provisional
agreement for sale and purchase (“provisional agreement”), a Practice Circular on “Completion of Provisional
Agreement” was issued to remind licensees of the points to note when preparing a provisional agreement.

In response to requests from members of the trade that execution of the estate agency agreements by electronic
means should be allowed for more flexibility in arranging the time and location of signing the agreement with
clients, the EAA issued a Practice Circular to provide the trade with detailed guidelines on the execution of estate
agency agreements by electronic means. A set of e-forms of the prescribed estate agency agreements was also
developed and uploaded to the EAA website for the trade to adopt.

The EAA published a new booklet titled “lllustrations to Code of Ethics” with the aim of enhancing licensees’
understanding of the Code of Ethics through real-life examples, and updated “A Study Guide to Estate Agency
Law and Practice”, a reference book which provides basic concepts covering a wide range of topics related to the
law and practice of estate agency.
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Common Types of Non-compliance*

=E

Number

1. BHERIREULES  AFEHSEHREMELES  ZFREREHETNES

Issuing a false or misleading advertisement; advertising without vendor’s prior written consent;

advertising in contravention of vendor’s instruction 80
2. REEBANYMEER

Failure to possess prescribed property information 54
3. MEFPIERHERNVEIRSER  EIBEERRETEFPNMEXRZHEHN LR 8F

MEFREMEER

Providing wrong property or transaction information to client or failure to verify the accuracy of

property or transaction information provided to client; failure to supply property information to

client 50
4. RAFFHENRIERZ

Failure to enter into an estate agency agreement a7
5. RA#TTHER MEFIERRETEMRER

Failure to conduct a land search/supply the land search result to the purchaser/tenant 39
6. RAEWMRER WHEFAEEL HEYE LERREBHEREESH BREAIHALE

EER/HEARES MAEEARERSEE

Failure to ensure that the vendor/lessor has the authority to sell/rent out the property; failure to

ensure that the signatory was duly authorised by the vendor/lessor or purchaser/tenant to sign

the Provisional Agreement for Sale and Purchase/Provisional Tenancy Agreement 34
7. ORBERRATRARBHIE TSR EERRARSE

Failure to complete the prescribed form as directed or specified in the form 29
8. REMREBRREEAH MHHANNARNRSTORENEESEZRREENTS 8

BHMARRZRSHNENESINARIRGHHREKEZFNLEIN £ [REXXBERAF ] HFA

Failure to ensure that the name of the representative signing the Provisional Agreement for Sale

and Purchase/Provisional Tenancy Agreement for and on behalf of the corporate transacting

party had been ascribed below the representative's signature on the said Agreement; failure to

append the chop of the corporate transacting party or alternatively, have the following words

written against the signature of the representative of the corporate transacting party: “For and on

behalf of XXX Limited” 14
9. REMR BARMKRIEREMEREIE ZEIRIEZELE ERASKILEREXEER

BAEER

Failure to notify the EAA in writing within 31 days of the termination of being engaged in

estate agency work/the appointment or the termination of the appointment of a manager/the

employment or the termination of the employment of a salesperson 13
10. FEHIERIRHZ DFRRE FEEIMYIRK

Pre-printing extra terms on an estate agency agreement 11
* BALEFRAERS LEBB-HERER -
* There was more than one type of non-compliance in some inquiry hearing cases.
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Actions Taken Against Licensees or Former Licensees*

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

BRARFREA AT AAB

Number of licensees or former licensees involved 403 513 571

TEME

Type of actions*

BlE e

Admonishment/reprimand 275 410 398
Fine 96 189 237
TENEBR _E P AN (S

Attachment of conditions to licence® 285 281 308
B0 P S R AR

Suspension of licence 52 26 26
HE R AR

Revocation of licence of 0 28t

” A ETTBRBHERGEERBEIDMIELHFIR - EhEBN AR TBREEILE -

* These actions were taken pursuant to powers under the EAO. Some actions may be disciplinary in nature and others not.
# ENARBHERREARBERESSHTE - BARKBATHE [EEANE] 2R AMTEGEEREMRR -
# These nine cases were decided by the Licensing Committee on the ground that the licensees concerned were considered not “fit and proper” persons

to continue to hold a licence.
#" 7TRHHERERAMREE QT c BARFMATHEEEAZ |ZX  EMTHEEAERFRR —RRERRERALEZTESHE
i 27 cases were decided by the Licensing Committee on the ground that the licensees concerned were considered not “fit and proper” persons to
continue to hold a licence, and one was decided by the Disciplinary Committee.

4 EBHERS - SUE 58 AKBIFE ARIUBE R —HTE - 4 In some cases more than one action was imposed on the same
5 BB R R BE L R BR AR BT hn - ECBRRIBEIZ PR AN © licensee or former licensee.
5 Some conditions were attached upon the granting of licences

and others attached thereafter.
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During the year, the EAA organised

79 sessions of CPD activities, which
attracted 18,698 enrolments.

6 MBEFE R~ BIBIKBMARIE -
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It is one of the EAA’s missions to raise the competence of the trade. Through implementing a voluntary Continuing
Professional Development (“CPD”) Scheme, the EAA strives to enhance the professional knowledge of estate
agency practitioners, so as to meet growing public expectations.

The EAA attaches great importance to keeping effective and continuous communication with the trade. Through
various forms of communication including CPD activities, publication of newsletters and newspaper articles,
focus group meetings and circulation of letters to licensees, we updated practitioners with the latest regulatory
requirements and important matters they have to attend to when handling property transactions.

In addition, the EAA spares no effort in consumer education. Effective consumer education equips consumers with
essential knowledge to safeguard their own rights and to make informed decisions during property transactions.
In the year, we utilised different promotional channels to disseminate useful knowledge to consumers.

The EAA launched the CPD Scheme on a voluntary basis in May 2005. Under the Scheme, estate agents and
salespersons are encouraged to earn 12 CPD points every year, with at least six points from core subjects.

Modes of learning include attending approved seminars and award-bearing courses®; participating in web-based
learning activities; teaching approved CPD courses; and taking part in pro bono work. Generally, one CPD point
is awarded for each contact hour of classroom or web-based learning activity.

CPD activities are organised either by the EAA itself, the Government or educational and training institutions as
endorsed by the Professional Development Committee. Accreditation by the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational Qualifications is required for activities organised by other providers such as estate
agencies.

During the year, 445 sessions of CPD activities were organised by various activity providers with over 33,300
enrolments. A total of 73,632 CPD points were attained. The number of enrolments and CPD points attained
decreased by 10% and 17% respectively.

Among the 445 sessions held, 79 were organised by the EAA with 18,698 enrolments (about 56% of the total
enrolments), which is an increase of 7% over the previous year.

Compared to the previous year, enrolments of CPD activities organised by the estate agency trade recorded a
decrease of 25%. In 2013/14, 347 sessions of CPD activities were held by either trade associations or estate
agencies, attracting 14,264 enrolments (about 43% of the total enrolments).

The figures showed that although the number of enrolments of EAA-run activities recorded a 7% increment in the
year, it could not offset the decrease in the number of enrolments of CPD activities offered by the estate agency
trade, which dropped in the last three quarters as compared to the same periods in 2012/13 (down by 38%). The
trade’s major activity providers revealed that the main cause was that much time of their frontline salespersons
was allocated to the sales of first-hand residential properties due to business needs as the first-hand residential
property market had been getting more active during the year. Thus, time spent on training activities was reduced.

6 Courses leading to certificates, diplomas, sub-degrees or degrees.
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EERRHEMTIBRBENRBI=FERNITHHEERSEAR
Number of Activities Organised by the EAA and Other Providers and Number of
Enrolments in the Past Three Years

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

EEEE SHAR FEBEE 2Z2HAXR FEEHE ZHAR
No. of No. of No. of No. of No. of No. of
Sessions Enrolments  Sessions Enrolments  Sessions Enrolments

EAA 75 16,543 75 17,447 79 18,698
WERIERR

Estate agency trade 357 19,069 400 19,006 347 14,264
o HiktE

Other providers 44 1,182 25 577 19 369
L

Total 476 36,794 500 37,030 445 33,331

New Initiatives

To keep up with licensees’ learning momentum under the voluntary CPD Scheme, the EAA launched several
incentive measures to enhance participation in late-March 2014. These initiatives include presenting premium CPD
Attainment Symbols to licensees who have respectively achieved the CPD attainment target in three consecutive
years and five consecutive years; allowing licensees to carry forward CPD points accumulated in excess of the
CPD attainment target in one year to the next, up to a limit of six CPD points; relaxing the calculation of CPD points
earned by attending award-bearing courses; and allowing licensees who undertake non-recognised courses to
apply for CPD points subject to certain conditions.

The EAA hopes these measures would better reflect the learning time licensees spent and engage more
practitioners to pursue professional excellence through life-long learning.

Highlights of CPD Activities Organised by the EAA

Professional Forum

Following the success of the 15th Anniversary Professional Forum held last year, the EAA organised another
forum in June 2013 to explore the professional development of estate agents. Speakers of the forum included
Mr Augustine Ng, CEO of the EAA; Mr Michael Choi, Member of the Long Term Housing Strategy Steering
Committee; and Mr Steve Chiu, Chairman of the Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong. They elaborated on
their views on the importance of the estate agency trade’s professionalisation and how professional status was
being promoted in other disciplines.

The three speakers also participated in a panel discussion session, which was moderated by Professor Eddie
Hui, Professor of the Department of Building and Real Estate of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. During
the session, the speakers shared further insight on the professionalism of estate agents. They also answered
questions from the floor and exchanged views with the participants.
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The EAA organised a forum to explore
professionalism of estate agency trade.
EAA Chairman Ms Vivien Chan (2nd from
left) poses with the speakers and the
moderator at the professional forum.
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Special Topics Series

The EAA invited experts from the government and professional bodies to brief licensees on the latest
developments affecting the trade, with an aim of enhancing their general understanding and awareness of topical
issues and policies from time to time. During the year, six special topic seminars were organised covering topics
on outline zoning plan and application procedures of planning permission, property mortgage valuation, railway
development, land administration, urban renewal and change in land use. These seminars were well received by
a total of 2,475 enrolments (about 13% of the total enrolments of EAA CPD activities).

Practical Issues Series

To help frontline practitioners familiarise themselves with the EAQ, its subsidiary legislations, Code of Ethics
and practice circulars; and consolidate their practical skills and knowledge on the matters they have to attend
to during property transactions, the EAA launched the Practical Issues Series. Seminars under this Series were
supplemented by case studies and course-end exercises to enhance learning outcomes.

In 2013/14, 34 sessions of seminars were held under this Series, attracting 5,775 enrolments (about 31% of the
total enrolments of EAA CPD activities).

Practical Series for Business Management

To help estate agency companies and branch managers to effectively discharge their statutory duty to manage
their estate agency business and ensure their employees follow the provisions of the EAO, seminars were held
under the Practical Series for Business Management. Topics included effective control of estate agency business,
laws relating to employment and equal opportunities, and principles relating to financial and human resources
management.

During the year, nine sessions were organised under this Series, attracting 1,243 enrolments (about 7% of the total
enrolments of EAA CPD activities).

Other Seminars

[t is important that practitioners should be exposed to knowledge relating to their daily practice from different
disciplines in order to better understand their responsibilities and to deal with issues they may encounter every day.

Sale and Purchase of Property by Way of Transfer of Shares

As some property sales may be performed through the sale and purchase of shares of limited companies holding
properties and this kind of sales arrangement involves complicated legal and liability issues, to draw licensees'
attention to the various risks involved in the sale and purchase of property by way of transfer of shares, the EAA
invited professionals to speak on the subject. In total, four sessions were held, attracting 1,040 enrolments.

Integrity and Professional Ethics

To promote integrity and ethical practices in estate agency business, and help practitioners familiarise with the
recommendations and practical guidance provided in the Best Practice Checklist jointly compiled by the EAA
and the Independent Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC”) in March 2012, relevant training sessions were
organised regularly. In the year, two sessions were held at which Principal Corruption Prevention Officer from the
ICAC and representative from the EAA jointly spoke to the practitioners on the good practices for handling property
transactions, good governance and internal control, and effective human resources management.
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CPD Activities Held in the Past Three Years

(1) &L/ Fad

Core/Non-core

HE

EERENMT NSHMBBE -
REBAER  ET-FETBRIEE

B 22

vor 2 2R

¥ INEF

(M BIEEE]IMEBLBRED -

EBEE (BRBETL)

No. of sessions (% of total sessions)

2011/12

2012/13

g= F'_,Tﬁtuﬁ
EENSErE Y/ ES
ANRHI10%)

1ﬁ¥EﬁT%ETFﬁi’M’\%ﬁtiﬁﬂk M PINAENE - B
EERN2012F 9 AL E LEEE
BB BRI M

2013/14

Z 0 Core 373 (78%) 389  (78%) 352 (79%)
FEAZ A Non-core 103 (22%) 111 (22%) 93  (21%)
(2) #AH Fees
&= Fee-paying 244 (51%) 288  (57%) 236 (53%)
- Free of charge 218  (46%) 210 (42%) 201 (45%)
5 1 BT B B Pasffj{)g;;g[j”meﬂt' 4 (3% 2 (1%) 8 (2%)
(3) =mES Language
B Cantonese 413 (87%) 469 (94%) 414 (93%)
HEE English 17 (4%) 14 (3%) 19 (5%)
T Putonghua 40  (8%) 11 (2%) 6 (1%)
&3 Bilingual 6 (1%) 6 (1%) 6 (1%)
(3 530) (Chinese/English)
(4) B Location
BEEE Hong Kong Island 171 (36%) 139  (28%) 153 (34%)
JLEE Kowloon 259  (54%) 313 (63%) 246 (55%)
i New Territories 40 (9%) 42 (8%) 38 (9%)
WELEESER Web-based 6 (1%) 6 (1%) 8 2%)
(Blan: 48+ distance leaming
BB 8L (9. e-Quizzes/
28)58) e-learning programmes)
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Code of Ethics

The EAA published the “lllustrations to Code of Ethics” in July 2013 with an aim to enhance licensees'
understanding of the Code of Ethics through real-life examples. In the year, three seminars focusing on different
parts of the booklet were conducted in an attempt to enable licensees to get a better grasp of the requirements
of the Code of Ethics and remind them to adopt proper and ethical practices for handling property transactions.

New Practice Circulars

To help practitioners gain a thorough understanding of the provisions of new practice circulars issued by the EAA
on deed of gift/assignment at nil consideration; property information form; land search; protection of personal data;
conduct in promotional activities and provision of property information in first sale of residential properties; nine
relevant seminars were organised. These sessions attracted 1,862 enrolments (about 10% of the total enrolments
of EAA CPD activities).

e-Learning

Ever since the EAA launched the e-Quiz in June 2005, practitioners are able to broaden their practical knowledge
by conducting online CPD activities at anytime and anywhere. To further accommodate the training needs of
practitioners and enrich their online learning experience, the EAA launched an e-Learning platform in September
2012. In 2013, two new e-learning programmes were developed, namely, “It Pays to Play Fair and Proper (1)”
and “Powers of Attorney”. To facilitate licensees’ learning, the EAA will continue to develop more e-learning
programmes.
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One of the new consumer education videos that the
EAA produced in the year introduces the importance of
conducting land search for a property.

BRP  MUEHARBEEERERR -
In the video, the two hosts answer queries from the consumer.
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Promotion of Consumer Information

The EAA believes it is essential to educate the public to enable them to protect their interests and make informed
choices when buying, selling, or leasing properties. Hence, in 2013/14, the EAA continued to share with the public
useful information on its work and knowledge on property transactions through various communication channels
and platforms.

The EAA participated in a recruitment fair at the Olympian City in October 2013 and the Education & Career
Expo 2014 at the Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre in February 2014. Exhibition booths were set
up respectively to introduce the work of the EAA and display information on the licensing requirements and
qualifying examinations. Brief talks on the licensing regime and CPD Scheme were also delivered. In addition,
roving exhibitions at MTR stations including Taikoo, Mei Foo and Kowloon Bay were also held on three consecutive
weekends from late-March 2014 so as to increase public understanding of the work of EAA. The above exhibitions
had reached about 2,000 visitors and about 3,700 copies of consumer booklets and corporate information were
distributed.

To enhance the knowledge of the general public about the important points to note in appointing estate agents
during property transactions, the EAA has produced two new consumer education videos on the subject of
“land search” and “permitted use” of properties. Through an interesting story telling format, the videos remind
consumers that estate agents must conduct a land search in respect of the property concerned, provide the
land search result to their client and check the permitted use of the property when appointed to handle the sale,
purchase or lease of a residential property. Both videos are made available on the EAA’s website for public’s
viewing. To complement the launching of consumer education videos, an online advertising campaign has been
rolled out in March 2014 in certain popular portals and property-related websites. The videos were also played at
the aforementioned roving exhibitions in MTR stations in late-March.

EER2EMIEEES  BREAR
BPHEERTENTH  FRIRHER
TR REHE o

The EAA participates in a recruitment
fair to enhance the public understanding
of the EAA’ s work, in particular the
licensing regime of the estate agency
trade.
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(Above and right) In the year under review, the EAA
issued a number of press releases and held press
conferences.
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Media Relations

The EAA considers the media as an important partner to publicise the EAA’s work and efforts to the public.
To maximise media coverage, the EAA issued 17 press releases and held three press conferences on major
initiatives in 2013/14. A total of 13 feature interviews with the EAA Chairman, the CEO or senior management of
the Administration with print and electronic media were also arranged. The EAA’s relationship with the media was
fostered through regular gatherings, including the Chinese New Year gathering with frontline journalists held in
February 2014, as well as the mid-year and year-end briefings.

The EAA also collaborated with the media for the promotion of consumer information and professionalism in the
trade. In 2013/14, the EAA has cooperated with “Now TV” to produce a short series on selected disciplinary cases
to alert consumers to possible malpractices by estate agents. We also engaged the Hong Kong Economic Journal
as our media partner to organise and publicise the forum on professionalism of estate agents in June 2013 to
enhance the visibility of the event. After the event, a webpage with videos of the forum and related articles were
posted on the website of the Hong Kong Economic Journal to sustain the readers’ interest on the subject.

Moreover, the EAA frequently contributed articles on topics relating to property transactions and expected services
of estate agents to the media. In 2013/14, a total of 23 articles were published in the free newspaper am730 on
a biweekly basis and eight articles were contributed to the website and magazine of Singtao Group. To provide
useful information for English speaking consumers, we also started contributing articles to the English newspaper
The Standard from October 2013. By the end of 2013/14, five articles have been published in the newspaper.

Liaisons with the Trade, the Government and Other Bodies

The EAA believes that it is of utmost importance to maintain a regular and two-way commmunication with the estate
agency trade. As part of a regular communication channel with the trade, the EAA held six liaison meetings with
the representatives of major trade associations in 2013/14. At these meetings, the trade representatives were
consulted on the EAA’s new initiatives, and issues of mutual concern were discussed. The trade was also briefed
on the salient points of draft practice circulars and the trade’s views were noted.

Encouraged by the positive feedback from participants, the EAA continued to hold a number of focus group
meetings in various districts as a direct dialogue with frontline practitioners. At these meetings, the Administration
shared with the frontline practitioners new initiatives and discussed latest practice trends and issues encountered
by the trade. The exchanges helped us to formulate practical policies and measures for the trade to follow. In
2013/14, the EAA conducted four such meetings in Lai Chi Kok, Tseung Kwan O, Shau Kei Wan and Mongkok
respectively.

With the measures introduced by the Government in relation to the property market, the EAA arranged a special

meeting with the Government and the trade in July 2013. The meeting provided a platform for the Government to
explain the measures to the trade, and for the trade to reflect their concerns to the Government.
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From time to time, the EAA also issued letters or reminders in the format of email or SMS to licensees to alert them
to certain requirements relating to the estate agency practice or to any new Government measures. In 2013/14, a
total of 20 such reminders were issued. In addition, a total of three issues of EAA’s licensee newsletter, Horizons,
were published to keep licensees informed of the EAA’s new regulatory measures and latest activities. Members
of the public could also read the newsletter through the EAA’s website.

Throughout the year, the EAA maintained close liaisons with various stakeholders, Government departments,
statutory and professional bodies.

As the Sales of First-hand Residential Properties Authority (“SRPA”) started enforcing the Residential Properties
(First-hand Sales) Ordinance in April 2013, the EAA has been in close liaison with the Authority on matters relating
to compliance of the Ordinance by estate agents.

With the aim of enhancing the image of the EAA being an effective regulator of the estate agency trade and
introducing the role and work of the EAA, a new Corporate Video has been produced in 2013/14, which will be
distributed to visiting delegations and opinion leaders in the community.

The EAA had also exchanges with different regulatory and professional bodies in the field of estate agency outside
Hong Kong. In September 2013, the CEO delivered a speech at the Asia Pacific Real Estate Congress held in
Singapore to share the Hong Kong regulatory experiences with counterparts in Asia. During the trip, the CEO also
visited the Council for Estate Agencies of Singapore. In addition, the Administration also received delegations from
the Macau Housing Bureau, estate agency associations from Taiwan and Foshan. Views and experiences were
exchanged and shared during these meetings.

EERTHRERLES [FEN
A R IBR BRI BN
The EAA organises focus group
meeting with licensees regularly
to exchange views with them on
their practice.
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The EAA organises positive psychology training programmes for staff.
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For the year under review, the EAA reported a surplus of $12.4 million (as compared to a surplus of $19.0 million
last year).

Income for the year under review was $81.0 million, a net decrease of $2.1 million or 2.6% over the previous year.
There was a reduction in the examination fee income and interest income with a slightly increase in licence fee
income. No gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment was reported this year.

The examination fee income reported at $5.9 million, a decrease of $4.0 million or 40.6% less than the previous
year, due to the number of candidates registered for the examination had dropped. Interest income reported at
$0.8 million, a drop by $0.3 million or 30.6% over the previous year, due to lower time deposits interest rates
offered by banks this year.

The licence fee income reported at $74.4 million, an increase of $2.2 million or 3.1% over the previous year. The
increase was due to the yearly cumulated licensee’s number” reported during the year was comparatively higher
than that of last year, despite the number of licensees was on a gradual downward trend this year.

Expenditure for the year was $68.6 million, an increase of $4.5 million or 7.1% compared to last year. ltems that
saw major increases in expenditure were depreciation, office accommodation & related expenses, operating
lease rentals, publicity and advertising, staff costs and professional service fee. ltems that saw major decreases in
expenditure were community education, equipment maintenance and service fees for examinations.

The EAA Administration is headed by the Chief Executive Officer. As at 31 March 2014, the staff establishment
was 96.58 (as compared with 91.5 as at 31 March 2013). The percentage of employees with disabilities was 1%.
The staff turnover rate for 2013/14 was 23%.

To promote effective pay management for staff, we commissioned a human resources consultancy to conduct
a review of our pay design and issues, introducing a few pay adjustment measures in early 2014. Our annual
performance-linked pay adjustment exercise in 2014 also drew reference from the findings of a pay trend survey
conducted by a remuneration consultancy.

Capitalising on the expertise, mature personality and soft skills of the “silver hair group”, we have implemented an
employment strategy of recruiting retirees/ex-officers from public organisations or government departments on a
part-/half-time basis to handle inquiries/complaints in the frontline. By identifying the right personnel with the right
level of expertise to do the right job, it has proven to be a win-win human resources strategy over the years.

To increase work efficiency and strengthen electronic data management, we launched employee self-services
under the Human Resources Information System. Staff can apply for leave and check own leave balances on-line
etc., thus saving much of the paper record.

With the newly created “Service Assurance” function, the EAA aims to strengthen the overall corporate governance
by ensuring that staff in discharging their duties do so in compliance with relevant supervisory requirements,
internal policies and procedures, and performance standards.

To enhance staff engagement and capabilities, functional, soft skills and positive values alignment training
programmes were organised in the year, including advocacy skills and crisis communication for managerial staff,
and complaint handling and positive psychology for general staff.

7 Calculated by adding the 12 month end figures.
8 The EAA has employed a strategy of hiring half-time staff. Two half-time staff are equivalent to one full-time employee.
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‘EFAA Finance, Smﬁ( and Administration

MERUTHE IR

Non-directorate Staff Establishment

#E
B AR Rank Number
SAREIR SRR Senior Manager/Legal Counsel 3
38 Manager 10
BhIR AR IR Assistant Manager 13
AEFE Investigator 3
FHE Officer 24.5*
1T BNIE Administrative Assistant 8
BEEF Assistant Officer 2
=AM E Senior Clerk 15
X8 Clerk 14

ML EERER - B 2B -

Two half-time Officers are equivalent to one full-time Officer.

NEETHARMNEAE 8 H M

Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer and Directors® during the year

REEZNFITRAHMAE 0D
FENTTaR

The total remuneration'© of the Chief Executive Officer and directors’
during the year was as follows:

A
Number of individuals

07T % 500,000 7T $0 to $500,000 1
500,001 7CZ 1,000,000 7T $500,001 to $1,000,000 0
1,000,001 7LZ 1,500,000 75 $1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1
1,500,001 7L Z 2,000,000 7T $1,500,001 to $2,000,000 2
2,000,001 7L & 2,500,000 7T $2,000,001 to $2,500,000 1
&zt Total 5

©

BIER2014F1 A5 HEIMNAAITAL - U
KR 2014F 2 B4 BIMAKBERITHE -

10 AEFEENMAERET -

i BREARHE RERBERNES - ER -

Include the former Director of Operations who left on 5 January 2014 and the current
Director of Operations who joined on 4 February 2014.

Includes gratuity and performance-linked pay, if applicable.

There were four directorate staff during the year.
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The EAA encourages staff to have work-life balance.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

To encourage staff to help the underprivileged and fulfil our corporate social responsibility, we participated in
various fund-raising activities organised by the Hong Kong Community Chest (e.g. Green Day, Dress Casual Day,
Love Teeth Day, Christmas Greetings for the Chest, Skip Lunch Day etc.) and World Cancer Research Fund Hong
Kong.

To protect the environment and save the earth’s resources, we donated obsolete office furniture and equipment
(e.g. PCs and printers) to charitable organisations for recycling.

Information Technology

The EAA has always strived to be a responsible, impartial, responsive and effective regulator. With the growing
expectation from both the public and media, there is a need to completely revamp and rebuild an integrated
information technology (“IT”) platform to monitor the correlation between different functions within the organisation
and assess the effectiveness of the administration’s efforts through data mining, data analysis and tracking of work
progress. The EAA Board in 2012 had approved a capital project fund to build a new Integrated Management
Information System to replace the existing one and to enhance the current E-Services.

The implementation of the new system will provide data integration of various data among different sections of
the EAA. It also provides support for E-Services such as e-Payment, e-Certificate and e-Application for licensees.
In future, E-Services will extend to CPD online course registration. In addition, the system aims to facilitate data
standardisation which enables effective protection of personal information, audit trail of data changes and data
migration between various systems to ensure organisational efficiency and effectiveness.

A regular IT audit is maintained to ensure the organisation’s security measures are up-to-date and on par
with the industry. An Intrusion Prevention System was built on top of the firewalls to safeguard security. The
Administration’s Information Technology Steering Group also meets regularly to examine relevant IT issues and its
capabilities with a view to improving the effectiveness of the EAA’s regulatory, disciplinary and training efforts.
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EREEE 6 60% 16
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Eo8fgiaE/ NE 0 - 1
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Corporate Governance

The EAA is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance and a high level of accountability,
credibility and transparency, so as to foster public confidence in the EAA.

The EAA Board and Administration

The Board is the highest decision-making authority of the EAA. It sets major strategies and policies, including
the five-year corporate plan, the annual work plan and annual budget, and monitors the performance of the
Administration.

Members of the EAA Board are appointed by the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
[t consists of a Chairman, a Vice-chairman, and 18 ordinary members from various sectors of the community,
including the estate agency sector, and the Transport and Housing Bureau.

There are five standing committees and one working panel under the EAA Board to oversee the various aspects
of the EAA work. Their terms of reference and memberships during the year are at Annex 1.

The EAA Board may set up work groups to deal with particular issues from time to time. When necessary, it
may also appoint other persons (i.e. Board-appointed Members) who are not members of the EAA Board to the
committees, panel or work groups.

In 2013/14, the number of meetings and the average attendance rates of the meetings of the EAA Board, standing
committees and working panel were as follows:

Average

Number of attendance Number

meetings rate of Board of papers

held members considered

The EAA Board 4 88.8% 58

Finance and Strategic Development Committee 0" - 0

Disciplinary Committee 2 70% 9

Licensing Committee 6 60% 16

Practice and Examination Committee 4 73.3% 13

Professional Development Committee 3 72.3% 17

Section 28 Investigation Panel 0 - 1
* The Finance and Strategic Development Committee held no meetings in 2013/14 as there was no material issue requiring the deliberation by the

Committee before consideration by the Board. Major finance and strategic matters were dealt with directly by the Board in the year.

The Administration of the EAA is led by the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”), who is responsible for implementing
the EAA’s policies and managing its operations.
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Corporate Governance

Integrity and Impatrtiality

To foster public confidence in the integrity and impartiality of the EAA, the EAA adopts a two-tier reporting system.
All Board Members and Board-appointed Members are required to register their interests with the EAA upon
their appointment to membership and annually thereafter. They are also required to declare their interests at all
EAA meetings in any subject and matter under consideration by the EAA, and any conflict of interest or potential
conflict of interest which they may have with the affairs of the EAA. The register of interests is available for public
inspection.

In addition, all staff of the EAA Administration also have to declare annually if they have any financial interest,
direct or indirect, in any business or organisation which competes with the EAA, with which the EAA has business
dealings, or which is being regulated by the EAA.

Regarding interests in land and property, all EAA Board Members and Board-appointed Members are required to
declare any beneficial interests in Hong Kong or overseas. Registrable interests include land or property owned by
a Member in his/her name or held indirectly through another company or person. It also includes land or property
which a Member has a right over its disposition or has any pecuniary interest deriving from it. The managerial staff
of the EAA Administration also adopt a similar requirement in declaring their interests in land and property.

The post-employment sanitisation period for the CEQO, Directors and Managers are respectively one year, six
months and two months. There is also a prohibition on all staff, including the CEO and Directors, to take the estate
agents or salespersons qualifying examinations during and within two months after service.

The Board Members and employees of the EAA are considered “public servants” for the purpose of the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance.

Accountability and Transparency

To facilitate accountability of the EAA, a Corporate Authorisation Manual was formulated to provide corporate
management authority guidelines. All Members of the EAA, standing committees, work groups/panels and all
employees of the Administration must act in compliance with the spirit and intent of the Manual and within the
scope of authorities conferred.

As a responsible regulatory body, the EAA has a set of performance pledges for its services to the public and the
attainment level of the pledges is reviewed regularly. Details of the pledges and the attainment level in 2013/14 are
at Annex 2.

To increase the transparency of the EAA’s work, the EAA furnishes the Secretary for Transport and Housing an
Annual Report, copies of which have to be laid before the Legislative Council and are made available to the public
at the EAA’s office and website.

Members of the public are also kept abreast of the EAA’s work and initiatives through various communication
channels, such as the mass media, EAA publications and its website.

To facilitate the public to access information about the EAA, the EAA has a designated Manager as the Access to

Information Officer who is responsible for ensuring that requests for access to information under the EAA’s Code
on Access to Information are properly dealt with in accordance with specific procedures.
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Corporate Governance

Checks and Balances

The EAA’s statement of accounts is subject to audit by an external auditor. In the year of 2013/14, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu was the auditor of the EAA.

Under the EAQ, licensees or licence applicants may appeal against the EAA’s decisions concerning refusal to
grant or renew a licence, or its disciplinary sanctions by writing to the Secretary for Transport and Housing. The
Secretary for Transport and Housing is required to appoint a panel of persons for the purpose of hearing such
appeals. The appeals are determined by a tribunal, the members of which are appointed by the Chairman of the
panel from members of the panel.

The EAA came under the jurisdiction of The Ombudsman on 2 July 2010. In the year of 2013/14, a total of
three inquiries from The Ombudsman were received. All of them were closed during the period, of which one
was partially established after a full investigation. Besides, one enquiry received in the previous year was also
established after a full investigation. In consideration of the recommendations from The Ombudsman on these two
cases, a number of improvement measures for the Administration have been adopted and implemented. Progress
reports on the improvement measures adopted were submitted to The Ombudsman in relation to these cases.
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Terms of Reference and Membership

Al

Finance and Strategic Development Committee

1.

To consider strategic issues of long-term significance, in
preparation for consideration by the Board.

To examine issues of major financial significance, in
particular, staff cost implications, budgetary matters,
long-term financial planning and asset management,
and to make recommendations to the Board for
consideration.

To oversee human resources management and
to review and approve establishment structure,
reorganisation, manpower planning and development of
human resources policies and procedures.

To examine issues of major significance in human
resources management, in particular, the pay structure,
remuneration and allowance policies and terms and
conditions of employment of the EAA employees
(including the Chief Executive Officer and Directors),
and to make recommendations to the Board for
consideration.

At the direction of the Chairman, to review and
evaluate the performance of the Chief Executive
Officer and Directors for the purpose of confirmation
of appointment, extension of probation, promotion,
dismissal, termination or renewal of employment or
other employment related issues and the granting
of any performance-linked awards, and to make
recommendations to the Board for consideration.

To review and endorse the annual work plan and budget
prepared by the Administration and to recommend the
same to the Board for consideration.

To devise guidelines for and make recommendations to
the Board on the investment of the EAA monies.

To monitor trade and community response to the EAA
regulations and policies and, on such basis, recommend
appropriate actions to the Board and/or the standing
committees for consideration.
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9. To perform such other tasks as the Board may from time
to time delegate.

10. To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating
to the exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers
as and when the Committee considers necessary.

4= Membership

FE FREEEZ+ » BBS © JP Chairman: Ms Vivien CHAN, BBS, JP
P8 : ZXFESE - BBS » JP Members: Mr William LEUNG Wing-cheung, BBS, JP
ENEB LT Dr Saimond IP

ISR ER - JP

Sr Serena LAU Sze-wan, JP

ZFEIBIEE  SBS - JP

Prof the Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, SBS, JP

BERT L Ms Elaine LIU Yuk-ling
BRI S Mr Alexander LUI Yiu-wah
RELAE Mr NG King-wah
=R L Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han
RES L+ Miss Melissa WU
BEHEEEREINER Permanent Secretary for Transport &
(BE)HRE Housing (Housing) or his representative
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B. Disciplinary Committee

To draw up guidelines and procedures to ensure
consistency and fairness in handling disciplinary cases.

To receive, consider and inquire into complaints
as mentioned in section 29(1) of the Estate Agents
Ordinance (“EAQ”) and submissions by the Chief
Executive Officer as mentioned in section 29(2) of the
EAO that are referred by the EAA to the Committee,
and to conduct such inquiry as the Committee may
think fit after having considered such complaints and
submissions.

To receive and inquire into complaints lodged against
licensed estate agents or salespersons for breaches
of the Code of Ethics, Practice Circulars or guidelines
issued to the trade from time to time by the EAA.

To consider the reports and recommendations of the
investigator appointed by the EAA under section 28 of
the EAQ, with referral by the Section 28 Investigation
Panel, to look into suspected and alleged breaches
or non-compliance of the provisions of the EAO
and to conduct such inquiry as the Committee may
think fit after having considered such reports and
recommendations.

To exercise any of the disciplinary powers provided
under section 30 of the EAO as the Committee
considers appropriate.

To attach to licences such conditions as the Committee
may consider appropriate.

To refer from time to time cases of malpractice or
complaints considered by the Committee to other
committees for formulation and/or revision of policies,
practice or regulations for better discharge of the EAA’s
functions.

To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating
to the exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers
as and when the Committee considers necessary.



Annex 1 Stamfing Committees

[54=1 Membership

S BERZ T Chairman: Ms Elaine LIU Yuk-ling

BB : PRABED ST 4 Members: Mr Charles CHAN Chiu-kwok
BEERHIX Professor CHAU Kwong-wing
SRS E Mr Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan
EokEL L Ms Cynthia CHUNG Wing-suet
/N3l Dr Saimond IP
et Mr Anthony KWOK Chong
2418 E R Sr LAU Chun-kong

trbivtax Mr LEE King-leong

=R Mr LIU Che-ning
AR A Mr Alexander LUI Yiu-wah
REDHL Miss Melissa WU
REESRLE P Mr YU Wai-wai, JP

LEKE : Board-appointed Members:

PRAEISEA  MH

Mr CHAN Siu-tong, MH

RERERE

Mr Tony CHAN Tung-ngok

FE=EELAE - PDSM

Mr Sidney CHAU Foo-cheong, PDSM

KB+ Ms Winnie CHEUNG Lai-chun
REEEFAE Mr Antonio CHU Lok-sang
BhE B S A Mr IU Ting-kwok

LEEZ L Ms Doreen KONG Yuk-foon
M B L Ms Phyllis M.K. LAM
REETE Mr Johnny LEUNG Ka-kui

T IB1E 5 & Mr Calvin TSE Shun-lai
EBEEE Mr Lawrance WONG Dun-king

=% - OBE * QPM » CPM

Mr WONG Tsan-kwong, OBE, QPM,
CPM
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Licensing Committee

1.

To consider and recommend licensing requirements for
estate agents and salespersons.

To consider and recommend the criteria for exemption
from the licensing requirements for any particular class
of persons.

To instruct the EAA Administration to process
applications for licences/statements of particulars
of business (SPOBs) and to grant or renew such
licences/SPOBs to applicants meeting the licensing
requirements.

To consider and if thought appropriate, to approve or
refuse applications for licences/SPOBs brought before
the Committee.

To exercise and perform any and such of the EAA’s
functions and powers under sections 17, 23, 24, 25 and
27 of the Estate Agents Ordinance and section 9 of the
Estate Agents (Licensing) Regulation.

To set policies relating to licensing matters.

To review and make recommendation on the scale of
licence fees and charges for services provided by the
EAA.

To consider and design the relevant forms and related
documents pertaining to licensing matters.

To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating
to the exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers
as and when the Committee considers necessary.
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4= Membership

S RIFFERI=6 - P Chairman: Sr Serena LAU Sze-wan, JP
K8 : BEERHIR Members: Professor CHAU Kwong-wing
SREL$95E A Mr Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan
EMEEL Dr Saimond IP
2R BIERD Sr LAU Chun-kong
FEIBEES - SBS - P Prof the Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, SBS, JP
LEKE - Board-appointed Members:
BEEBRALT(CHEBEZES) Miss Vera TAM Sau-ngor (Consumer Council)
REETE Mr Alex YU Ka-ki
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Practice and Examination Committee

1.

To draw up, review and revise code(s) of ethics
governing the conduct and practice of the estate agency
trade.

To review and make recommendation on the regulations
under the EAQ relating to the practice and operation of
estate agents.

To consider and review practices within the trade
and prepare or consider Practice Circulars or other
guidelines on various aspects of estate agency work
from time to time.

To monitor compliance of the EAO and its subsidiary
legislations, code(s) of ethics, Practice Circulars or
other guidelines; and to liaise with the trade on ways to
improve the standard of practice and quality of service.

To determine the syllabi and fees for the qualifying
examinations for estate agents and salespersons.

To set the parameters for the administration of the
qualifying examinations.

To oversee and give direction to the EAA Administration
in the setting and moderation of examination questions
and determination of penalties for breaches of
examination regulations by candidates.

To review and determine the pass marks and
commendation marks for the qualifying examinations
and, where appropriate, those for each part thereof.

To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating
to the exercise of the Committee’s functions and powers
as and when the Committee considers necessary.
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5 4=1 Membership
FE ZKFSTHE - BBS © JP Chairman: Mr William LEUNG Wing-cheung, BBS, JP
BIERE mEEZ T Vice-chairman: ~ Ms Gilly WONG Fung-han
D= PR iR B 5 A Members: Mr Charles CHAN Chiu-kwok
BRI Professor CHAU Kwong-wing
EkEat Ms Cynthia CHUNG Wing-suet
ELY e Mr Anthony KWOK Chong
FEREE Mr LEE King-leong
MRELE Mr NG King-wah
REEEE P Mr YU Wai-wai, JP
ERMEERTENER Permanent Secretary for Transport &
(BE) A RE Housing (Housing) or his representative
LEKE - Board-appointed Members:
BimgEkE Mr FU Tak-wah
R+t Ms Jasmine NG Chi-ping
=EfAL L Miss Angela WONG Ching-yi
TR Mr Lawrance WONG Dun-king
=iREE L Ir Dr Stanley K C WONG
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E. Professional Development Committee

1.

4,

To examine the training needs and design appropriate
training programmes to raise the competence of
licensees.

To oversee the implementation of the Continuing
Professional Development (“CPD”) Scheme including:

a. conducting periodic reviews on its focus, scope
and requirements;

b.  determining guidelines for assigning core and non-
core activities;

c. approving CPD activity providers and evaluating
CPD activities;

d. adopting appropriate CPD activities of other
professions and trades into the CPD Scheme of the
EAA; and

e. monitoring the effectiveness of the CPD Scheme
and making recommendations to the Board as
appropriate.

To advise on professional exchange activities and
monitor the administration of scheme(s) relating to
reciprocal recognition of professional qualifications for
the estate agency trade.

To obtain such legal and/or expert advice as the
Committee may consider necessary for or in relation to
the proper discharge and exercise of the Committee’s
functions and powers.
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4= Membership

S REXAE Chairman: Mr NG King-wah
K8 SREN$9 5 Members: Mr Horace CHEUNG Kwok-kwan
kA Mr Anthony KWOK Chong
FREEE Mr LEE King-leong
2E =g Mr LIU Che-ning
REELE P Mr YU Wai-wai, JP
B EERTINER Permanent Secretary for Transport &
(BE)sARE Housing (Housing) or his representative
LZHEKE : Board-appointed Members:
FrERE Mr LEE Chi-wah
BERSE Mr LIU Chi-ming
R R+ Miss Caroline YEUNG Choi-fung
REEFL Dr Horace YUEN Hoi-sing
BElmBmRE Representative of the Vocational

Training Council
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1

Section 28 Investigation Panel’

1.

To formulate guidelines for and procedures on the
selection of cases for investigation under section 28 of
the EAO.

To oversee the conduct of investigation under section 28
of the EAQO to ensure its full compliance.

To receive and consider reports and recommendations
from the EAA Administration on suspected or
alleged cases of breaches or non-compliance of
a requirement(s) or other provision(s) of the EAO
warranting investigation under section 28 of the EAO.

To appoint investigator(s) under section 28 of the EAO to
conduct such investigation and carry out such duties as
the Panel considers necessary.

To receive and consider the reports and
recommendations from the investigator appointed by
the Panel under section 28 of the EAQ.

Where the investigator recommends to the Panel that
the exercise of disciplinary powers under section 30 of
the EAO should be considered, to refer the case to the
Disciplinary Committee for its consideration.

To obtain legal and/or expert advice or service relating
to the exercise of the EAA’s functions and powers as
prescribed by section 28 of the EAO as and when the
Panel considers necessary.

To exercise and perform any and such of the EAA’s
functions and powers as prescribed by section 28 of the
EAQ.

Not a standing committee, meet as and when needed
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4= Membership
Chairman: Sr Serena LAU Sze-wan, JP

- 21826 - UP
K8 : B #EE - SBS ' JP Members: Prof the Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, SBS, JP
hRESLE Mr NG King-wah
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Enquiries
AR5 %a R BT EEX
Service type Standard Results
[E & 4 Response to enquiries
o BHEEW ¢ Telephone enquiries e 1fEI{EXRA' e Within 1 working day’ 100%
(B=sz8) (voice mail messages)
o EEEN e \Written enquiries o 7{ET{EXRK2 e Within 7 working days? 99.7%

ERER

Qualifying Examinations

ARF5 AR

Service type

B2 EER
Standard Results

B RKAEBANEES  Issue result slips®

EA%BH231E  Within 23 working days 100%
TERA after the examination
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1
2
3

The EAA’s working days are from Monday to Friday.

From the next working day following receipt of the enquiry.

Issued by the Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority,
authorised by the EAA to administer the examinations.



Annex 2 ‘Achievement of Teﬁ:ormance
Standards 2013/14

JE B

Licensing
AR 7528 7] E=td EER
Service type Standard Results

BRIBFTREEREEEE  Process new licence U B|FEE%E)  Within 10 working days for  99.2%

applications 10 ERA4  new applications?
BRIRAB IR R Process renewal licence  YgE|#&RE 5% Within 20 working days for - 99.9%
applications K)20fE T{EXA  renewal applications

EFRTTERFEER  Refund of application 10MEZ{ERAS  Within 10 working days® 94.0%
SHUBMEREREER)  fees for rejected/
R cancelled applications

4 HEERKWZIMREE  MEERARXEZz ¢ From the next day following the receipt of an application, the required fee

T—EAI{ERE  BREMEB A EEFE and documents to the day the licence/statement of particulars of business
AAE (SR AEEIRZH) AL - WfEER is issued (i.e. the day the licence is available for collection). This service
HEEAREERBRRBREZETEE  WIRKIE target does not apply to applications requiring determination by the EAA
BAITER ETRRIEHIEERBHRER Licensing Committee. A longer duration is needed for such cases for the
BRBEBBAR/ RE=E(HIMEESE EAA to make enquiries and for the applicant or any third party (such as the
B EAARERE)ERNEBEFEE 55 Official Receiver’s Office, trustees-in-bankruptcy or the Police) to respond
BB &% - A A PURERESIBBERE © before the EAA approves or rejects the application.

5 HECESERBAE T —EIL/EXE:m  ° From the next day after an application is cancelled or rejected; for
BWEREAZE  ABKIWESEZHRETEA bankruptcy cases, from the next day following the receipt of instructions
BRZ T —EI{EXREST - from the Official Receiver’s Office or the trustee-in-bankruptcy.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 &3 104



WET 201314 5 EREEES

&
Complaints
AR & X8 7 Ee=tcd EEX
Service type Standard Results
RUHIEEF A Acknowledge receipt of  5{ET{ERA Within 5 working days 100%
FOETETE S written complaints
W E|E4FEAS Provide a written 15 B THERR Within 15 working days 100%
B mEFALE  response to
HEEEE complainants upon

receipt of sufficient
supporting documents

BAREFAFAE  Notify complainants 10fE TVERAC  Within 10 working days® 97.6%
R of the outcome of the

investigation
BRI A Notify complainees 10fATVERA7  Within 10 working days” 95.9%
(BN AL (licensees) of the
R outcome of the

investigation

6 mEkFAEz At BUESERALAERH °© From completion of investigation or, in the event the case is submitted for

EZEBITRLRTA - BIARHIRF A H an inquiry hearing, the date of the letter notifying the complainee of the
AMEERBAEZ HBA - result of the hearing.

7 TEREBERTLEWRNIEFRER - =0E 7 Excluding cases that are submitted for inquiry hearings. In these cases, the
EEERIEABBEBEAERBRR21IAAN statutory requirement is for the EAA “within the period of 21 days beginning
1 52 R TE LA 2 T 3B AN FE KR A R I8 AN RZOR T P on the date of the relevant decision, [to] notify in writing the licensee and
YT EMAL - any other person against whom the decision is made of the decision.”

105 ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY HERIZEER



Annex 2 ‘Achievement of Cl’e?formance
Standards 2013/14

AR
Disciplinary Proceedings
AR %R Bz EREK
Service type Standard Results
BITERGLE Conduct the first SERAE1ZH Within 90 working days 74.9%
R disciplinary inquiry QO ETIERA after completion of
hearing of a case investigation

HFEEEER
Continuing Professional Development (“CPD”)

AR¥% %8RI B2 EEX
Service type Standard Results
ST RIS Process applications for 20 AL {EXA Within 20 working days 100%

BEEBED endorsement of CPD

RA R R activities

B [HFEEE]  Issue certificates of 30fETIERA Within 30 working days 100%
FLMEER attendance for EAA-

BIREIFEEZZE  organised CPD
EEEEHREA  activities
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TO THE MEMBERS OF ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY
WEREEER

(established in Hong Kong pursuant to the Estate Agents
Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of the Estate Agents
Authority set out on pages 109 to 130, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the statement of movements in reserves and the statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Estate Agents Authority’s Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The Estate Agents Authority is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Estate
Agents Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Estate
Agents Authority determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 12 of the Estate
Agents Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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ﬂndéyendént Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Estate Agents Authority’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Estate Agents Authority, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of the Estate Agents Authority’s affairs as at 31 March
2014, and of its surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 August 2014
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HE2014F3A31BHIEFE

Statement of Profit or Loss and other

Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Fiasx
NOTES

LON Income

R Licence fees 5

ERE Examination fees 6

FBUA Interest income
TH Expenditure

ZEEN B & Auditor’ s remuneration

NEIND Business trips

REYBERZ Community education expenses

&3 BB RLROX

PAREERE RN
e
A EERERBRER

MEAREESH
R E
HHE T EEZER

REEEX
WRERAERERX

SRR -THRET

HE
Rl e s &
EXRBE
DNHEARRBRE
SERES
BTIRA
— e RoEa
—BHIME AR EX

Complaints, investigation and disciplinary
proceedings expenses

CEPA scheme expenses

Depreciation

Equipment maintenance and
communication expenses

Estate agent card expenses

Insurance

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Motor vehicle operating expenses

Office accommodation and related
expenses

Operating lease rentals in respect of land
and buildings

Postage

Printing and stationery

Professional service fees

Public relations and liaison

Publicity and advertising

Staff costs
- wages, salaries and allowances
- contributions to mandatory provident

fund scheme

EHRGE Service fees for examinations
EEEE RS Training activity expenses
HAbFE Other expenses

AFEERH Surplus for the year

109 ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY HERIZEER

2014
BT
HK$

74,381,155
5,854,900
766,009

81,002,064

65,000
5,471
1,266,174

142,948
7,735
1,358,302

1,024,877
123,280
1,106,160

1,027
152,396

2,100,226

7,791,762
331,719
442,609

1,567,200

48,783
377,500

44,606,874

1,157,668
3,724,457
586,728
603,943

68,592,839

12,409,225

2013
BT
HK$

72,166,934
9,854,300
1,103,818

83,125,062

65,000

1,449,644

124,125
6,649
1,165,228

1,137,858
131,850
1,166,211

1,150
124,599

1,838,744

5,587,251
299,640
450,340
723,550

71,846
287,241

41,483,026
1,053,811
5,921,365

506,948
476,234

64,071,310

19,053,742



EEREX

20143 A31 H

Financial Statements

Statement of Financial Position

At 31 March 2014

BsE
NOTES

FIREBEE Non-current assets

Y% - B RESM Property, plant and equipment 8

BB RS Deposit paid for acquisition of

property, plant and equipment 8

REEE Current assets

BEEIBEE Held-to-maturity investment 9

R R IBF R RiREe Debtors, prepayments and deposits

RITEFLERE Bank balances and cash 10
REEE Current liabilities

FEfTRRFK R FEETIEH Creditors and accruals

EEWA Deferred income 11

B U R R S IR Licence applications received 12
REBEEFE Net current assets
HEERERBAR Total assets less current liabilities
& Reserves

2014
BT
HK$

3,186,589

1,390,887

4,577,476

2,447,255
201,498,008

203,945,263

8,948,933
52,339,819
3,744,137

65,032,889
138,912,374

143,489,850

143,489,850

2013
BT
HK$

3,289,341

3,289,341

2,029,742
2,802,371
188,242,785

193,074,898

8,038,578
53,023,572
4,221,464

65,283,614

127,791,284

131,080,625

131,080,625

HRFI09E130E 2 BERE R
2014 F8 A2 HEEERZEKE
NI - WHIATRERES

By
TTIBAEZ,

The financial statements on pages 109 to 130 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Members of the Estate Agents
Authority on 26 August 2014 and are signed on their behalf by:

Vivien CHAN
CHAIRMAN

Ruby HON
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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MR

HEEEHXR Statement of Movements in Reserves
HE2014F3A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2014
BN &x
B ke EHEES RERE met
Litigation Capital
equalisation project  Cumulative
reserve fund fund Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
201264 A1H At 1 April 2012 9,750,000 62,421,614 39,855,269 112,026,883
ZFE R Surplus for the year - - 19,053,742 19,053,742
mE2BERFEE (L), A Transfer (to) from cumulative
fund - 14,059,094  (14,059,094) -
2013F3HA31B LK At 31 March 2013
2013F4 A1 8 and 1 April 2013 9,750,000 76,480,708 44,849,917 131,080,625
ZFE R Surplus for the year - - 12,409,225 12,409,225
MEARBEESE (H),/ A Transfer (to) from
capital project fund (9,750,000) - 9,750,000 -
mEBERHEE (L), A Transfer (to) from
cumulative fund - 18,994,155  (18,994,155) -
2014%F3 A31H At 31 March 2014 - 95474863 48,014,987 143,489,850

AR EFESAUAXNEEE B
ETREELFZESHREDL LFF -
KA B £ X B E &R AT S| BURY BF AR X
K- BEERBFERNBERERET
BEREEFVDAGHE  HAFR
HEFEERRAZRERE -

BABEESRANINERERR
LENEABRBAAR - EERETFE
MEERERETERRBAEZEANR
BE® IHEABERESERFA
ERMERHE -

H 22014 3A31H EAEAEH
CREEBEBRAUEBERKARA
= B X TE 89,289,863 T (2013 £
70,295,708 7T ) °

111 ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY HERIZEER

The litigation equalisation reserve caters for the cost of litigation
arising from some of the Estate Agents Authority’s decisions being
appealed to the Appeal Panel or challenged in court. A transfer
will be made from the cumulative fund to the litigation equalisation
reserve or from the litigation equalisation reserve to the cumulative
fund at the discretion of the Estate Agents Authority (“EAA”).

Capital project fund caters for the cost of capital projects, as
approved by the EAA. Transfers will be made from the cumulative
fund to the capital project fund or from the capital project fund to
the cumulative fund at the discretion of the EAA.

Capital project fund balance at 31 March 2014 included an amount
of HK$89,289,863 (2013: HK$70,295,708) which represents funds
for the possible acquisition of permanent office accommodation in
future.



BERERX
HZEZ2014F3A31BILFE

Financial Statements

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2014

LERBNEERE

RERH

BT SIS IBIEL AR -
MEHA
FEER
HREE EERER

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplus for the year
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Depreciation

Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

LEETEYRCEERTRE
AR FBENIRR RiZE R ()
R RS R R R 25

BRI (i) S
EMEREBBTE (AL ) 1

Operating cash flows before movements in

working capital

Decrease (increase) in debtors, prepayments

and deposits
Increase in creditors and accruals
(Decrease) increase in deferred income

(Decrease) increase in licence applications received

EETBNRERAFH NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REFHNRESRE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
HEETEE Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
BEETEE Purchase of property, plant and equipment
FHENASES Deposit paid for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment
BIFIE Interest received

BE(BA)BEERHERE

Redemption on (purchase of) held-to-maturity

investment

REREARE (M) WREFE

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

R kR SEVHRINFER
RAFENNRE LR FEY

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

RAFREILNRE KR FEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE

END OF THE YEAR

Re KRS FEMOESRIN -
RiTEEFMAE

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS:
BANK BALANCES AND CASH

2014
BT
HK$

12,409,225

(766,009)
1,358,302

1,027

13,002,545
374,056
910,355

(683,753)
(477,327)

13,125,876

(1,256,577)

(1,390,887)
747,069

2,029,742

129,347

13,255,223

188,242,785

201,498,008

201,498,008

2013
BT
HK$

19,053,742

(1,103,818)
1,165,228

1,150

19,116,302
(295,494)
357,166

2,706,816
1,067,638

22,952,428

4,980
(1,692,933)

1,124,903

(2,029,742)

(2,592,792)

20,359,636

167,883,149

188,242,785

188,242,785
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WEREBEERBER1997F5
A 29 B M8 a9 E A R A )X
Vo EFXTEBHBEAREMAERE
MEXRT RaitZzENEX
IKFE - REHMERBEER - 2
ERMEMMREERETER A
HEERBEFERRERAGMA
L4818 o

AMBEHRERABETLER REE
BHIEEEE -

BRAFIREETZE
B BHREEA

AEE WEREEERBEXE
RATEEG ARG HE M

RGBT REGERN  BA
M mEERl - &8 (BRYB®

LREZEg) 2B RRE (R
HIHEBNBEREER]) -

1BE] BB mE 4R
Amendments to HKFRSs

BRI B BTEREERZET7 5%
Amendments to HKFRS 7

B BB BHREENE105%
FIREE125

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

BT EABMBWMEERE 105
HKFRS 10

EFTBBMBHMERERE 115
HKFRS 11

ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY hENRBEER

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

1.

General

The EAA was established with the principal functions of
promoting integrity and competence of estate agents and
issuing estate agents’ licences under the Estate Agents
Ordinance dated 29 May 1997 (date of enactment). The
address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the EAA is 48th Floor, Hopewell Centre, Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the same as the functional currency of the EAA.

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the EAA has applied, for the first time, the
following new and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS(s)”), Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS(s)”), amendments and interpretations (“HK(IFRIC)-
Int”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “new and
revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

—_EENE T —FRHAEAUBRELNZFE
B R
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

KE-—sRMEENEMBE 2R
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

FEVBHRE  HAZHEERRERAMER
2w BIEES

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements
and Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

A EHmE
Consolidated Financial Statements

H R % HE
Joint Arrangements



EFTBR BB HMERERE 125
HKFRS 12

BT BB BHREEE 135
HKFRS 13

BEEGFTERE 1998
(2011 & 1EET)
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

EEEFERE 27 5%
(2011 F#&EET)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

EBEFTERE 2858
(2011 F£&HE5T)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

BRI BB ERE 1R
Amendments to HKAS 1

EB(HBRUERERELZED)
—BEE209%
HK(FRIC)-Int 20

BT ES - R EEY R
SHEAHEE R B AT MBEY R
KRB R/ 3 E R A 75

REBNENLBERTE -

Financial Statements

FERNEMEE s
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

AFEEE

Fair Value Measurement

(Z=EE=R

Employee Benefits

RVA BT ES

Separate Financial Statements
REERFINEEEEZRE
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Hih2HWRIER 2275
Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income

B8 KRS A EE P B 2 H BRBK AR
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine

Except as describe below, the application of these new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact of the EAA’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these financial statements.
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WEREEERRMAETR LS
APERIZE SR - BERIRMIEFTEA
SETEME 1R EERH KX
BEXR BN ERBaE AW
WX HEER] - BT BB G ER
F1RRBTAERU —RBRK
MEBLERENHRERT A
RIEaPEMBRTHERER] - I
S ERTBA G ERAF1RATE
ERXBERTARBERINNIA
B SRZXHEERFTHEREREASD
PR E R R ¢ (a) T & W EF DB
WHEABEERAIAR (b) ER KA
BATEREFORALEAESR
REOWEE WX BHEEMAERI
BEMR W ER DB —&%IEF
I 4 § 24 AT DA Al 8 B 1R B9 R
BRPIHBER -EIINEEAR
BEPRN -BRTUNEFRRERSE
H R AWME 2O RMEFR]
EREGHEANE IR HISHER
xOBXBEELRB I BEEREK

EEE -

WEREEERYRARFEM
THERMENRERNIEB

SRR -

BRI BEAMBHREENE105%
FI2HRREBSEERNE 27 5%
Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

BRI BB BmMELERNE 1R
Amendments to HKFRS 11

BRI BB ERFE 16K K&
% 38 5%

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

BEI BB EAE 1958
Amendments to HKAS 19

BRI E AW HREENE IR

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY hENRBEER

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income”

The EAA has applied the amendments to HKAS 1. Upon
the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the EAA’s
“statement of comprehensive income” is renamed as the
“statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income”.
The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been applied
retrospectively. Other than the above mentioned presentation
changes, the application of the amendments to HKAS 1 does
not result in any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive
income and total comprehensive income.

The EAA has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

1

i
i

It
H

0lee

wE

\
/

Investment Entities’

ARG EE SRR HAO
Accounting for Acquisition of interests in Joint Operations®

BENEMNEHENAIEET RS

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation®

HlERAGE - EEHRK?
Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions?

MR EERFE IR zEEI M AEMB RE 7R
M@ ERES

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®



BB BT ERIE 325
Amendments to HKAS 32

CHEN R R
Amendments to HKAS 36

BT BB &R E 39 5%
Amendments to HKAS 39

BRI E BB RELER
Amendments to HKFRSs
(BRI & B MRS LR
Amendments to HKFRSs

BAMBHRELRE IR
HKFRS 9

BEMBGHEEAE 145
HKFRS 14

75 (BB BEREREZES)
—R2EE21
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

| MR2014F 1 B1 A2 BFIRZ FE AR °
2 MR2014F 7 B1 B2 BFIAZ FE AN °
s AR — R B M A B HIE R BB B 5
ERBF RN FRERBREBRRET -

4 R2014F7 A1 Bk 2 BRI 2 FEER -
FEERIOPISNER

R2016F 1 A1 B2 BB FEER -
6 R2016F 1 A1 B2 BBRZFEER -

o

EERELEAEMEERAF REE
RIEAEMBREEAN ZBER
2 UTHEHEEKIEHABH
XEPHBRREXNEATE -

<2

C

Financial Statements

TREENTRABEZEE"
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’

FeMEEZAKESERESTR'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets’

MTAETAMEBRENTEEL PastE"
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’

—E-EE_T-_FRPRAVBREEZ
FEHRR*
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle?

—E-E_T-=FBHREEMBEREELELNZ
FENRR?
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?

SRTHAES
Financial Instruments®

EERLERES
Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

e
Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined
when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited

exceptions.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
6 Effective for annual periods on or after 1 January 2016.

The EAA is in the process of assessing the potential impact
and anticipates that the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the EAA.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis and in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
Estate Agents Ordinance. The significant accounting policies
adopted are as follows:

Revenue recognition

Income from issuing licences is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the life of the licence.

Income from examinations is recognised on the date of the
examination.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that economic benefits will flow into the EAA and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rates applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the extracted life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
deprecation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial Statements

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the EAA reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the EAA estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the statement of financial position when the EAA becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

The EAA’s financial assets are classified as loan and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including debtors and bank balances) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss
on financial assets below).
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Financial Statements

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° Disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as debtors,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are,
in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the EAA’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit period, and observable
changes in local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14 &3 120



2

121

TR

IRBER AR 2EREEM
FEOWMFHEEEREBEZEEE
B AREBERBDRER -
BEERBZFAENZREERE R
BHEBEFAKRATRERRAE
SRR EEIR 2 BELHER

B FE WK R 2 R (B R B ET IR
wWHIRSI  PTEEREE KA
B EEZBREERT AR -
BREREEZES X ER AR
R B —ARKKERRSDTA
Ym - R EEmE - BERE
[ A BT 85 2 SRR RT A MR & e

I EHK AT EZEREEM
FOMEREZRX -HERERRE
Z BB AR E R
WEERNEBRRELEZSMH
HEE A ZAE R B ER
BREBESRED  HEZBEEE
REEREZB 2REETBH
fieh I 4 T SRR 1B IR BB 2 B 3H K
N o

TRAE

EERBETZERABNRERR

RUAHNZANBTREREBEEER
N N o

B EZ
ERMNEZEZRAENERAENE
MHECBERARNERI D
Bezhx - -BERMEXREMAR
BAFHRREPR(WER) -
ERFTABTRARREAIEL
RERERF ZEK@FEZF
X G BRERBRERMNEXZ -
DENKEREREH T X5
PR Re B At i (B ST o

ol =N~
TRABE(BERENERXNERA
B) T3 1& IR B BR N SRR DA B 35 A

| AL
ZSQ = o
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For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of debtors, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a debtor is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definition
of a financial liability.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fess and points paid on received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including creditors and accruals) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.



ﬁEFIL:
éﬁé?%ﬂﬁim%Z@@%
AR iﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁéﬁ
LEEERBERIEANLD
MEHREEES - HERK '$%
ERIEERZEATREE - WA
RYEESEBETEREERE B
R B K [B] ¥R I 4 48 2 1l 2
HWREE ARSUEBELEEMR
RAR BGURAEEY RZA
BE UMERMBEHERE- - WA
BRECEBESBEERAI D
Riglkm@zsREE XBelk
BHRERZEBMEE  THE KRR
ZHEHRERACDEREER -

IJ]: //)h‘

\V\JJ:EEEZIJ\IE Eﬂﬁﬁﬁ%’ﬁ
Fﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁiﬁﬂﬁl&fﬂﬂkﬁ P53

\/\'T‘Iﬁ,Iﬁ”&/\q]ﬁEwuZ;%u-l_
HK@QJE’J’TEZWWZ%E’]%EE
KRB EERPER -

RIEERABDZEHERER - B
HREME KRBT e®EER
TRAEBE - RIERTMEEZ
ﬁEﬁ@ﬁiEﬁﬁ)@ﬁﬁﬁZFﬂ%
BRESRER -

HE

KREBENRUNERZE  KHEH
BRAAX BUONSERGUEERE
ERRFHEAMEAETAREKRTE - H
EEEZREMRE LT ERER
SN o

WMl MR EHERARISHERE
B Z5EEEREABHER - #
ﬁ*”“”?'&\l«xﬁi%/fﬁlﬂﬂﬁ“ﬁiE’ﬂ
X o AMMNEERGEEERE
MMEXAETAERKRE HEEE
2RO R 5 R Uk 1 OH RERR S o

<2

Financial Statements

Derecognition

The EAA derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the EAA neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the EAA continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the EAA retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the EAA continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or l0ss.

The EAA derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the EAA’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.
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ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY hENRBEER

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees.

A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end
of the reporting period.

Employee benefits — provident fund obligations

The EAA operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme
are held in a separate trustee-administered fund. Both the
EAA and the employees are required to contribute 5% of the
employee’s relevant income up to a maximum of HK$1,250
(2012: HK$1,250) per employee per month. The EAA’s
contributions to the MPF scheme are expensed as incurred.

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the process of applying the EAA’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management had made the
following judgments that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts of
debtors

Debtors are measured at initial recognition at fair value,
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining individual allowances, the EAA has considered
that detailed procedures have been in place to monitor this
risk. In determining whether allowance for bad and doubtful
debts is required, the EAA takes into consideration the
aging status, the likelihood of collection and the estimated
discounted future cash flows. Specific allowance is made
for debtors that are unlikely to be collected. If the financial
conditions of these debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, allowances may
be required.



Financial Statements

5. BRE 5. Licence Fees
2014 2013
BT BIT
HK$ HK$
FEMREKA Total licence fees 72,166,934
6. ZH & 6. Examination Fee
2014 2013
BT BT
HK$ HK$
FEEHABWA Estate agents and salespersons
qualifying examinations 5,854,900 9,854,300
7. Bi1E 7. Taxation
BB EGOINIESTIE  BEER The EAA is exempt from Hong Kong Profits Tax under section
BEREHNEENGEH 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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EHERAGRE

WATEE RE  GAREE = H
Leasehold Motor  Furniture and
improvements vehicles fixtures Equipment Total
B BT BT B BT
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
KA COST
201294 A1 BER At 1 April 2012 3,647,098 557,264 1,797,836 0,068,440 15,070,638
FEERE Additions 601,138 - 89,760 1,002,035 1,692,933
VR Adjustment for the year (38,000) - - - (38,000)
Ba: Disposals - - (128,407) (195,243) (323,650)
R2013F3A31 BER At 31 March 2013 4.210,236 557,264 1,759,189 9,875,232 16,401,921
FEERNE Additions 355,217 - 52,990 848,370 1,256,577
Ba Disposals - - (36,485) (252,463) (288,948)
R2014F3A31 BER At 31 March 2014 4,565,453 557,264 1,775,694 10,471,139 17,369,550
nE DEPRECIATION
R2012E4A1BES At 1 April 2012 3,521,400 92,509 1,666,936 6,984,027 12,264,872
FEERE Provided for the year 199,003 163,101 39,899 801,225 1,203,228
EEES Adjustment for the year (38,000) - - - (38,000)
R Eliminated on disposals - - (128,407) (189,113) (317,520)
2013463 A31 B At 31 March 2013 3,682,403 255,610 1,578,428 7,596,139 13,112,580
DEBRE Provided for the year 298,675 163,102 53,534 842,991 1,358,302
B3] Eliminated on disposals - - (36,485) (251,436) (287,921)
201443 A 31 B At 31 March 2014 3,981,078 418,712 1,595,477 8,187,694 14,182,961
REFE NET BOOK VALUES
R2014F3A31 B At 31 March 2014 584,375 138,552 180,217 2,283,445 3,186,589
2013463 A31 B At 31 March 2013 527,833 301,654 180,761 2,279,093 3,289,341

ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY #hERIZEEER
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Financial Statements

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

20% or over the period of the
lease term if it is less than

Leasehold improvements

5 years
Motor vehicles 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Equipment 20% to 30%

During the year, the EAA paid a deposit amounting
to HK$1,390,887 for the acquisition of an integrated
management information system and the total consideration
amounted to HK$5,866,587.

Held-to-maturity Investment

2014 2013
BT BT
HKS$ HK$

Certificate of deposit

2,029,742

BLTHEREBELIEES M IGET
AAXSMEETENEE1.5%
(2013 :1.5%) ' FIBEEHFZFERFEE
MM EARER2013F4 510 H

B HRE -
RTEHRRRE

RITEKRLKRSBEEEERER
M RRERAEEHBEAIOEI
H (2013 :90&92H ) EREF
0.01%ZEFHF0.58% (20134 :
FOOI1%EFFO0.75%) TNEM™
SR ERAEMNTHETER - &
ERRAZETEENEFEASRHE
HEHRAVFEEMES -

i S WA
A M N 95 0 FE R B B RS K

HEXHERER  REEER
M WA FE R BURFIE T R IR -

10.

11.

The certificate of deposit is not listed and carries interest at
1.5% (2013: 1.5%) per annum and has matured on 10 April
2013.

Bank Balances and Cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the EAA
and short-term bank deposits with a maturity of 90-92 days
(2013: 90-92 days) at prevailing market interest rates ranging
from 0.01% to 0.58% per annum (2013: 0.01% to 0.75%
per annum). The EAA considers that the carrying amounts of
these assets approximate their fair values.

Deferred Income

Deferred income represents licence fees received from estate
agents for a validity period, which are deferred according to
the EAA’s income recognition policy.
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12. Licence Applications Received

These represent monies paid by estate agents together

FHHEX WREEHDNER with the applications for the licences which were still being
I8 )RR o processed at the end of the reporting period.
B AR E 13. Capital Commitments
2014 2013
BT BT
HK$ HK$
ETﬂ’?ﬂE?fifM’JE’JHﬁZ%%% Capital expenditure in respect
iR M E AR of the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment:
— authorised but not contracted
for in the financial statements 6,185,000

ESRKYEARERE B RE

— contracted but not provided

4,475,000 -

BRI © SR M BRI Y in the financial statements

B M
EXEEOERE 14. Operating Lease Commitments
REER EERMEREFER

AAIRIEERBELHETAR KR
SR REEORBAENT

At the end of the reporting period, the EAA had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due

as follows:

2014 2013
BT BT
HK$ HK$
—FR Within one year 8,143,836 8,143,836

—FEEFRFNA In the second to fifth year inclusive
(BEEMEBREEN) 4,750,571 12,894,407
12,894,407 21,038,243

BEROAEEEERMEET
PRAEEFNENEE HHF
HETEHA=F(2012: =F)

ESTATE AGENTS AUTHORITY #hERIZEER

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
EAA for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated
for and rentals are fixed for an average term of three years
(2012: three years).
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Financial Statements

15. Capital Risk Management

The EAA’s capital comprises primarily the fund accumulated
since its incorporation and its objective when managing
capital is to ensure that the EAA will be able to continue as a
going concern so that it can continue to promote integrity and
competence of estate agents.

The EAA regularly reviews and manages its capital to ensure
adequacy for both the operational and capital needs. The EAA
operates a zero distribution policy with regard to surpluses
generated. All surpluses are transferred to the cumulative
fund for future operational needs. The EAA charges an annual
licence fees on the estate agent.

The EAA regularly reviews the need to increase licence fees to
ensure operational needs are fully covered.

16. Financial Instruments

a. Categories of financial instruments

2014 2013
BT BT
HK$ HK$

SMERE :

BRI HR
(RERSRASEEN)

BAEIIBRA

Financial assets:

Loans and receivables (including
cash and cash equivalents)

Held-to-maturity investment -

ZAVTSIE 190,604,061
2,029,742

EEAE

Financial liabilities:

LA SR AGTE 2 €88 &  Amortised costs

8,437,349

7,197,168
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The EAA’s major financial instruments include debtors,
bank balances and creditors and accruals. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (including interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure that
appropriate measures are implemented in timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

Cash flow interest rate risk

The EAA is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets. Interest bearing financial assets are
mainly balances with banks which are all short term in
nature. Therefore, any future variation in interest rates
will not have a significant impact on the results of the
EAA.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the EAA. The EAA’s exposure of its counter
parties are continuously monitored, received and
approved.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the EAA reviews the
recoverable amount of the receivables at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the EAA considers that the EAA’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation.
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Financial Statements

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the management of the EAA, which has built
an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for
the management of the EAA’s short, medium and long-
term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The management of the EAA manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves and continuously
monitors the forecast and actual cash flows.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the EAA’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities on the agreed repayment terms. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the EAA can be required to pay.

ik S8 REAR
BEBRAE  0FE30X 31Z60X ARAERHE REE
Weighted
average Total
effective 0-30 31-60 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate days days  cash flows amount
% BT BT BT BT

7,733,385 703,964 8,437,349 8,437,349

- 7,182,168 16,010 7,197,168 7,197,168

AFEE

ERMEENERAGBZIAYF
BEIRE-RIRZIEE
BAEF TEELUZKS
ABRBIAZRATERS
BERLEUIAZXZE®
B LNMRRERESNTR
EfE o

EERRR MBHRRBR
BENATHELIEREER
cREERASERAAQF
BEME

Fair values

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The EAA considers that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the financial statements approximate their
corresponding fair values.
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